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We are a leading developer of Coal Bed Methane
(“CBM") in the UK and prospective producer of North
Sea quality gas from virgin coal seams. The Group has
licences to extract oil and gas across the north of
Wales and the north of England covering an area of
approximately 1000 square kilometres. Independent
analysis of the assets has estimated a mid case gasin
place of 893 billion cubic feet of gas, equivalent to

140 million barrels of oil.

In conjunction with our joint venture partner Nexen
Exploration U.K. Limited (“Nexen") (whose parent is a
$16 billion Canadian exploration and production
company with considerable CBM experience) the
Group is now producing and testing good quality gas
at surface. We currently intend to market this gas by
the end of 2008.
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secure gas,
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Our highlights

Overview
Cur highlights

Financial

- Revenue - £811 thousand

-> Operating loss — £2,024 thousand*
- Retained loss - £2,015 thousand*

*After exceptional cost (impairment of goodwall on reverse) of £2,040 thousand

- Cash - £1.4 million at 31 December 2007
-> Camry agreements — in place with Nexen Exploration

- Funding - £4 million available at
31 December 2007

Operational
893 bcf net to IGas in place, independently verified
Equivalent to 140 million barrels net to 1Gas of oil

Approximately 1000 square kilometres of
licensed acreage

Four wells drilled; with 3,200 feet in two
lateral legs

Production test at Doe Green; with electricity
connection agreement in place

Planning permission in place for a further
five wells

NN N 2N BN N2

Acreage applied for in 13th onshore
licensing round

Gas mtially i place (net to IGas) Growth year on year +47%

893"

2007

Licensed acreage

976 ™

2007

Growth year on year +27%
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Our strategy Our strategy is to develop our UK asset base and our
immediate objectives are to:

- Commence initial gas sales from at least one
property by the end of 2008
- Secure other routes to market

-> Gather data and production experience to allow
independent reserve auditors to dassify a
proportion of our gas as “recoverable resource”

> Fulfil licence obligations to secure licences into
second terms

- Apply for further acreage in 13th onshore
licensing round

Our Company
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What we do

Overview
What we do

CBM is a naturally occurring gas, similar to North Sea
gas, trapped in virgin coal seams. Where significant
volumes of this gas are held in the coal and the coal is
suitably permeable (and therefore allows the gas to
flow through it), it is possible to drill into the coal and
extract the water within the strata thereby reducing
the pressure in the reservoir, and allow the gas to
flow through the bore hole to be produced and sold.

While CBM production is in its infancy in the UK, CBM
already forms a significant part of the energy mix in
North America and Australia.
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Chairman’s
statement

Overview
Chairman’s staterent

The finandal year ending 31 December 2007 has been
a significant one for Island Gas Resources plc (IGas).

it has been the period through which we have built
foundations needed for the long-term success of

our Company.

These foundations have three integral parts:

01 Deliverability of gas

> In 2007 we camed out a long-term production test on one lateral leg in a weli at
Doe Green, Cheshire,

- we commissioned an independent audit of Gas Initially In Place (GIIF), and

> we drifled two more assay wells, one at Mill Farm in Yorkshire and one at Mostyn Quay in
North Wales

02 Asset growth

- On 13 June 2007 we were awarded blocks 110/18,19 and 22 in the 24th offshore licensing
round on a 50/50 basis with our joint venture partner Nexen

-3 We also acquired PEDL 107 (onshore) to allow us access to the offshore acreage

- Together these blocks, known as Pant of Ayr, have increased the net GIP of the group by
286 hilhon cubic feet (“bef”) or 47%

03 Financial flexibility

- On 31 December 2007, shares of |Gas were admitted to trading on the Alternative
Investment Market (AIM) of the London Stock Exchange (LSE) pursuant to the reverse
takeover of KP Renewables Plc Whilst our Group's carry agreements have some time to
run, our Company new has access to public markets in addrtion to maore tradronal Industry
trade funding mechanisms

-3 On 18 May 2007 we signed an additional camed nterest agreement with our joint venture
partrer, Nexen This carry 1s for £750,000 to speaifically cover the inrtial work programmes
at Point of Ayr

with sigrificant progress on the deliverability of gas, asset growth and an appropriate financial
base, | believe our Company has laid secure foundations for future growth
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Overview
Charman'’s statement

Since the end of the year we have made sigruficant progress towards our immediate objectives

- An addiional lateral leg has been dnlled at Doe Green, Cheshire which after a planned
workover 5 expected to be put on extended production test

-3 A connection agreement has now been obtamed for electnaty generation at the Doe
Green site

- Drling has now completed with encouraging results at Foxhill Farm, on PEDL 116 fulfiling
the licence commitment.

-3 Planning permission has been obtained at sies in PEDL 78 and 115 and ng slots agreed
which should ensure that licence commitments here are fulfilled withun the extensions
agreed wrth BERR*

In additon to the progress we have been making, the macro backdrap for our business s also
improving Rsing ofl prices are having an effect on the pces of natural gas with the pnce of gas
delvered to the National Balanang Point in winter 2009 currently trading at B0p/therm having
nsen from 45p/therm in December 2006 and 60p/therm in December 2007 as published in
Platts on the comresponding dates Ako, the impartance of gas dose to home and close to its
markets 1 mareasing, both for reasons of reduced emssions as a CONSeqUENCE of transport and
for security of supply

Finally, the achievernents of 2007 required a very considerable effort on the part of our
executve team and our joint venture partner Nexen | would like to take this opportunity 10
thank them for all therr hard work The reverse takeover and the admssion to AIM akso added
strength to our board and | would ke to welcome John Bryart, Rchard Ammstrong and Peter
Redmoand a5 Non-Executive Directors and thank them for ther help and support

1 would akso Tke to thank all our shareholders, both those who were with us before and those
who have become shareholders as a consequence of the reverse for therr contimued support
and i look forward to working together in growmng the value of our Company

'M—mwb&mmwwm

.

Franas Gugen,
Executive Chamman
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Business review

Four Oaks
See Map 01 >

Overview
Business review

The business of the Group is the development of a series of coal bed
methane assets in England and Wales. Development of these assets is
taking place in conjunction with our joint venture partner Nexen. in all
cases Nexen is operator of the assets and the Group is the non-operating
partner. Since the beginning of the year progress has been made in
developing all of the assets. These fall into four geographical areas:

This area s located both narth and south of the Mersey, between Liverpool and Warmngton
The area s made up of two hicences, PEDL 145 and PEDL 116 Actity in the area has been
concentrated at Doe Green, a dril site located between Warrnington and Widnes between the
A562 and the Liverpool to Manchester railway e Two wells were drilled at this site n the last
quarter of 2006, one was extensively cored and logged and a lateral leg was dnlled from the
other In 2007 this well was successfully dewatered and put on long-tesm producuon test This
leg continuously produced good qualtty gas to surface In January 2008 an addional, fonger
lateral leg was drilled into the same well and this well 5 again being dewatered and put on
production test A connection agreement has been obtained with the local electnaty gnd to
allow the veniture to export up to 1MW of electnaty from the site

In addition, this area has the benefit of planning permission for two more wells with laterals at
anather location within PEDL 145 This site would also allow export of the gas directly to a
customer Srte access discussions are advanced at a further se within the hcence block

The Licence term on PEDL 116 was extended by BERR on 13 February 2008 and the first term
now expires on 30 November 2008 On 15 April 2008 an assay well was spudded at Fox Hill
Farm The purpose of this well is to core and log the coal sequence after which it will be
plugged and abandoned The drilling of this well will satisfy the commitments under the first
term of the licence and extend 1t into #ts second term

Equipotse Solutions Ltd, which prepared the competent persons report that features in the
admission document, assessed PEDL 145 but did not include PEDL 116 in 1ts findings Within
PEDL 145 they gave a nsked mid-case gas in place north of the Mersey of 36bcf and 89hcf
south of the Mersey, as follows

(all frigures in Bcf) Gross Net

Area Low Mid High Low Mid High Risk factor  Operator
PEDL 145 (N of Mersey) 116 181 299 23 36 60 - Nexen
PEDL 145 (5 of Mersey) 99 444 803 20 89 161 80% Nexen

Souwrce Equiposse Solutons Lirmited as per competent persons report publshed on 7 November 2007, a copy of which can
be tound n the admsston document sent to sharehalders on 27 November 2007
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Point of Ayl' The ficences at Point of Ayr lie in the vianity of the town of Prestatyn on the North Wales coast
See Map 02 > They conssst of onshore icence PEDL107 acquired on 23 January 2007 and the offshore icence
P SSPL 1481 granted on 17 June 2007 by the Secretary of State for BERR SSPL. 1481 consists of
the offshore blocks 110418 (part), 110/19 (part) and 110/23 {part) The coal measures hare were
worked fram the pits at Point of Ayr and Mostyn and gas was found to be highly prohfic dunng
mining operations The coal measures extend a considerable dstance out to sea and this was
the rationale betund 1Gas and Nexen applying for the affshore licences PEDL 107 onshore was
acquired to faclrtate access to the offshore coals from onshore

On 26 November 2007 a well was spudded at Mostyn Quay This assay well was drilled to
core and log the coal measures and corroborate existing cores In the area The ng left site on
15 December 2007 and as planned the well was plugged and abandoned The cores are now
undergoing detailed analysis The driling of this well satisfied the commitments under the first
term of the licence and extended 1t into s second term

£quipotse Salutions Ltd, in preparing the competent persons report that features in the
admission docurnent, assessed the GIIP for the Point of Ayr area The large vanation between
mid and high case 1s significantly a function of how far offshore it 15 considered feasible to dnll
Assesments were as follows

(@l figures in Bcf) Gross Net

Area Low Mid High Low vhd High Risk factor  Operator
Pount of Ay Offshore 110/19 Part 2 4 10 1 2 5 - Nexen
Portof Ay Offshore 1N1OVIBPart 87 162 1141 43 B1 571 - Nexen
Pomt of Ay Offshare 110723 Part 120 508 4,340 60 254 2170 0% Nexen

Source Equipoise Solutions Limited as per competent persons report published on 7 Novernber 2007 a copy of which can
be found 1n the admission document sert to shareholders on 27 November 2007




08

island Gas Resources plc
Annual report and accounts 2007

Swallowcroft
See Map 03 >

Overview
Business review

The Swallowaraft area indudes licences PEDL 40-1, 56-1, 78, 115-1 and 115-2 The area extends
from Newtastle under Lyme in the West across to Lichfield in the East Extensive work has now
been undertaken to select appropnate sites from which to drill, using the Group’s existing
geological data Planning permission has been obtained for a well site in PEDL78 and a well stte
m PEDL 115-2 Rigs have been secured and wells will be dnlled at both sites in 2008 In PEDL 56
tand access has been agreed n pnnaple with a large local employer who i also expected to be
a customner for gas produced from that site The dnlfing of these wells wall satisfy the remaining
commiments under the first term of the licences and extend them nto therr second terms,

Equipose Solutions Ltd, in preparing the competent persons report featured in the admisson
document, assessed the GIIP for icences 50-1, 56-1, 78 and 115-1 but did not assess PEDL
115-2, as follows

{all figures in Bef) Gross Net

Area Low Mid High Low Mid High Rk factor  Operator
PEDL 40-1 and 56-1 563 854 1,326 113 17 265 - Nexen
PEDL 78-1 305 874 1794 62 175 359 50% Nexen
PEDL 115-1 B (west) 226 832 1,923 45 166 385 50% Nexen
PEDL 115-1 A (east} 106 138 361 21 28 72 - Nexen

Source Equipose Sohutons Limited as per competent persons report published on 7 November 2007 a copy of which can
be found n the admission document sent to shareholders on 27 November 2007
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Drax
See Map 04 >

Overview
Business review

The Drax area s located in Yorkshire, around 15 miles south of York self The licence s PEDL
92-1 A well was spudded at Ml Farm on 27 August 2007 and dnlled to a depth of 2,718 feet
This well was used to log and core the coal sequence The ng left site on 14 September and as
nlanned the well was plugged and abandoned The dnlling of this well fulfils the licence
commitments In the first term and the licence 15 now I its second term

Equiporse Sohstions Ltd, in prepanng the competent persons report featured in the admssion
document, assessed the net nsked GIIP for hcence PEDL 92-1 as 130 bef, as tollows

(all figures in Bcf) Gross Net
Area Low Mid High Low Mid High Resk factor  Operator
PEDL 92-1 383 652 1134 77 130 227 - Nexen

Source Equipose Solubons Limited as per competent persons feport published on 7 November 2007 a copy of which can
be found i the admession document sent to shareholders on 27 Novernber 2007
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Key finandial highlights Income statement

£000 2007 2006
Revenue a1 597
Operating (oss¥prafit (2,029)* 66
Retained (lossyprofit (2,015 62

* Indudes Exceptional tem — tmpaiment of Goodwill on Reverse: of £(2 040) thousand

Total licence expenditure
Cumulative to end (F000) 2007 2006
Incurred by Group 109 14
Camed by Nexen 2,664 1,267

Cash position

» The Group manages its cash and ather sources of finance, induding its agreements with

Nexen, so as to have access to adequate funds to meet the costs of future exploration and
development programmes At 31 December 2007, the Group's capital employed amounted
to just under £1 milion all provided by equity, as the Group had no borrowings

« Asat 31 December 2007 the Group had a consalidated cash position of £1 4 million in
addition the Group has committed income of £500,000 for 2008 and £500,000 for 2009,
as a result of a management services agreement with Nexen The Group also has access to
carry agreements with Nexen under which, as at 31 December 2007, a further £31 milion
of the Group's share of the cost of future licence work programmes {which have to be
approved by the Group) will be carmed by Nexen

e Acgordingly, at 31 December 2007, in total, the Group has access to in excess of £4 million
of funding
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Business review

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group 1s exposed, through rts operations, to hquidity nsk, which 5 managed by the
Board wha regularly review the Group's cash forecasts and the adequacy of avatable
fadilibes to meet the Group's cash requirements Cash instruments used to hold any surplus
cash and therr matunty depend on the Group's forecast cash requirements At the Group’s
current stage of development, the Board does not consider foregn currency and credit msks
to be matenal

The Group 15 exposed to market pnce rsk through vanations in the wholesale prices of gas
and electnoty in the context of its future production volumes Currently the Group has not
entered into any forward contracts to fix prces of these commodities The Board will
continue to monttor the benefit of entering into such contracts

The Group Is exposed 1o risks associated with geological uncertainty No guarantee can be
given that gas can be produced from any or all of the Group's assets or that gas can be
delivered economically

The Group 15 exposed to planning, emaronmentat, licensing and other permitting nsks
assoqaated with rts operations and, m particular, with dnlling and production operatons To
date, autherrties have appeared supportive but there can be no guarantee this will
continue

The Group s also exposed to a vanety of other nsks induding those related to

operational matters (induding cost Increases, avallability of equipment and successful
project exeqution),

Nexen operating agreements {induding thesr pursurt of projects),

competition,

key personnef; and

Itigation

Environment, Heatfth and Safety

The Group 1s committed to preserving the ervironment and to ensunng we prowide safe
and healthy work conditions for all our employees and contractors Nexen, which operates
all of our assets, has Ervironmental and Heatth and Safety poliaes that can be found at
WWW NexXening com
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Overview
Directors

Frands Gugen

Executive Chairman

Franas s the founder, majorty owner and Executive Chaimnan and has over thirty years oll and
gas Industry expenence Between 1982 and 2000 he helped grow Amerada Hess in North
West Europe, uttimately becoming CEQ He & @ member of the CBI's Energy Pobicy and
Economic Affairs Commuttees Franas s also a past President of the UK Offshore Operators
Assocation, past charr of the mdustnes representation on the UK Government Oil & Gas Task
Forge (now known as Pilot) and of the CBI's Environmental Affars Committee

Franas i a chartered accountant having worked for Arthur Andersen for eight years until 1982,
pnnapally as an of & gas spegalst He 5 cumrently a Non-Executve Director, Vice Chairman of
the Board and Charman of the audit committee of Petroleum Geophysical Services ASA and a
Non-Executive Director and member of the audit committee of the Britanmia Building Soaety
Until 2006 he served as Non-Executive Director of North Sea gas fields and pipelines operator
CH4 Energy Limited before ¢t was acquired in 2006 by Venture Petroleum Plc for Euro 224
million CH4, which was farmed in late 2002, had previously been financed by private equity
investors 31 and Trust Company of the West, majonty owned by Socete Generale Franas is also
the non executive charr of Chrysaor Limited, a new company focused on developing North Sea
ot and gas fields, with £100 mithon of backing from Barclays Caprtal and private equity investors
Natural Gas Partners X, LP and of Fraudscreen Limited, a new financiat services business

Franas devotes such tme to the Group as s required to discharge hes duties

Andrew Austin

Chief Executive Officer

Andrew 1s the Chief Executive Officer and speciakses in energy projects in the gas, electricrty
and renewables sector He has been mvolved in ventures as principal and has also rased
substantial funds of private and public equity for dients dunng the course of his career to date
Andrew spent 17 years working in rvestment banking in the Gity of London with Memll Lynch,
Nomura, Cribank and Bardays Caprtal Latterly he was Generai Manager of Credrtanstalt
Investment Bank in London He also has six years of management and consultancy expenence
with clean tech comparies including Generics Group and Whitfield Solar

Andrew has been an executive director of IGL since 2004 and now has full tme responsibilty
for day to day operations and business development

Brent Cheshire

Exeartive Technical Director

Brent is the Techrical Director After 14 years at Shell, he jomed Amerada Hess in 1991, where
he had a range of roles culmmating in Senior VP E&P Worldwide Technology and CEO
Scandinavia Brent has sigificant expenence in geclogy, dnlling technology and project
management and 1s managing director of DONG E&P (UK) Limrted, under arrangements that
allow him to devote appropnate time to 1Gas

He was respormible for Amerada’s entry mto Denmark through dentifying the potential of the
un-dniled South Ame prospect, managing its acquisttion and developing its production Brent 1s
a petroleum engmeer having graduated as 3 geologrst from Durhamn University Smce leaving
Amerada, he has been a semor advser to the Danish Oil and Natural Gas Company, asssting it
with the design and implementation of its growth strategy

Brent devotes such trme to the Group as s required to dsscharge his dutres
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Directors

John Bryant

Semor Independent Non-Executive Director

Sohn was appoinited to the Board in May 2004 He 1s Chairman of Gas Turbine Effioency pk
and 15 a Non-Executive Director of Weatherly pic These are both quoted on AIM He s also a
board member of the Attiki Gas Company, which supphes natural gas to Athens and the
surrounding dstncts

John previously served as President of Cmergy Global Resources Cosp, responsible for al
international business and global renewabte power operations of this US-based electncty and
gas utiity provider Before joiming Cinergy, John was Executive Director Generation with
Midlands Electricty pic Me has been involved in developing a number of large gas fired power
stations both in the UK and overseas, together with both electnaty and gas distnbution n
Europe and Afnca, renewable power in Europe and North America and gas and electnaty
trading Hrs prior expenence was at Britsh Sugar pic, Drexel Limsted, the Britsh Oxygen
Comparty and Unilever plc Drexel, where he was President, was a global oil and gas equipment
manufacturmg and serviang company

John i a Fellow of the Instrtute of Diectors and a Fellow of the Royal Soaety of Arts

Richard Armstrong

Non-Executive Director

Richard & an assooate with Fiske plc, the AIM quoted stockbrokers He 1s a former equty analyst
with extensive experience m reconstructing and rasing caprtal for tumaround situations especiatly
in the quated marocap sector He s currently a Director of AIM quoted Bella Medsa Pic.

Peter Redmond

Non-Executive Director

Peter has over 20 years’ expenence in corporate finance and venture capital After leaving
Duracher Limited mn 2003, he joined Merchant House Group plc and is now Chief Executive
Officer of its corporate finance subsidiary, Merchant Caprtal Lirited He has been active in
reconstructing a number of AIM companies as investing companies in recent years including
Optmisa plc, Weatherly Intematonal ple and Arthum ple, and each of these have since
successfully acquired or established operating businesses Peter is a director of AlM quoted
Weatherly Intematcnal plc and Bella Media pic
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Corporate governance

The Board of Drrectors support hugh standards of corporate governance and the gurdance set out in the Combined Code on Corporate
Governance (the “Combined Code®”) As a Company that s quated on AIM, 1t & not requred to comply with the Combined Code but all the
Drrectors intend to comply wath its main provisions as far as 15 praccable having regard to the see and compositon of the Group

The Board and its Commirttees
The Board of the Company consssts of three Executive Directors and three Non-Executive Directars, with the latter all being considered 10 be
mdependent The senior ndependent director s fohn Bryant and biographies of all the Directors are induded on pages 12 and 13

The Board retains full and effective control aver the Group The Board meets regularly at least eight times a year to consider reports on the
operational and financial performance of the Group and to decide on matters reserved unte tself, which iIndlude formulating, reviewing and
approving the Group's strategy, budgets, major tems of captal expenditure and senior personnel appontments

The Charman of the Board, who 15 executive, has a second castmg vote in the event of deadlock at Board Meetings, 5o long as the three
Executive Directors coflectively hold shares representing more than 75% of the outstanding votng nights compnsed in the ssued Ordinary Share
capital

The Directors have established separate gommittees each chaired by a Non-Executive Director as follows

Audit Committee
The committee compnses only Non-Executive Directors, being charred by Richard Armstrong and having as other rembers John Bryant and
Peter Redmond The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer may attend only at the invitation of the committee

The commuttee receves and reviews reporis from management and the Group’s audrtors relating to the Group’s annual report and accounts
and intenm results announcements The committee focuses particularty on compliance with legal requirements, accounting standards and the
AlM Rules and on ensuning that effective systems of internal financial and non-financial controls (including for the management of sk and
whistle-blowing) are mamtained However, the ulbmate responsibility for reviewing and approvng the annual report and accounts remams with
the Board of Directors The committee s ako responsible for making recommendations to the Board of Directors on the appomtment of the
extemnal auditors and therr remuneration The aomimittee keeps under review the extemnal auditors’ ndependence and consiclers the nature,
scope, and resutts of the audrtor's work and develops policy on and reviews (reserving the night to approve} any non-audit services that are
provided by the extemal auditors

The commuttee normally meets at least three times a year and meets the external audrtors at least annually wathout the presence of the
Exeartive Directors

Remuneration Committee

The Commuttee compnses only Non-Executive Directors, being chaired by John Bryant and hawvng as other members Richard Armstrong and
Peter Redmond The comnttee, which nomally meets at least twice a year, has responsitifity for making recommendations to the Board of
Drractars on the Company's policy on the remuneration of the Chairman, Exequtive Directors and ather senior executives (as 1s delegated to the
committee to consider) and for determining, within agreed terms of reference, specific remuneration packages for each of them, including
pension nghts, any compensation payments and the implementation of executive incentive schemes In accordance with the committee’s terms
of reference, no Director may participate in discussions relating to therr own terms and condrtions of service or remuneration

Nomination Committee

The nominabon commuttee 1s chamed by the Senior Independent Non-Exeastive Director, John Bryant, and its other members are the Non-
Executive Director, Richard Armstrong, and the Charman, Franas Gugen The commuttee, which normally meets not less than twace a year, has
responsibility for considenng the size, structure and composiion of the Board of Directors, retmements and appointments of additional and
replacement directors and makmg appropnate recommendabons to the Board of Directors The commitee s also tasked with ensurmg that
plans are in place for orderly succession to the Board of Directors and senior management posthions, so s to maintam an appropnate balance of
skills and expenence within the Group and the Board of Directors The Chief Executive Officer of the Company will be invited to attend
meetings of the committee when the commuttee 15 discussing matters related to executive management and such other matters as the
committee chairman deerns appropnate

At each Annual General Meeting at least one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation The Directors to retire
by rotation shall include, firstly, any Director who wishes to retire at the meeting and not offer himself for re-election and, secondly, those
Directors who have been longest in office since therr last appointment or reappointment, provided always that each director shall be required to
retire and offer himself for re-election at least every three years Directors appointed by the Board hold office only until the dissolution of the
annual general meeting of the Company next followang such appoimtment

Internal Control

The Board acknowledges that it s resporsible for establishmng and mamtatning the Group's systemn of mtemnal controls and reviewmng its
effectiveness The procedures that include, inter alia, financial, operational and compliance matters and sk management are reviewed on an
ongoing basis The internal contral system can only provide reasonable and net absolute assurance against matenal misstatement or loss The
Board has considered the need for a separate mitemat audit function but, bearmg m mind the present size and compostbion of the Group, does
not corsider it necessary at the cumert tme
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Relations wrth shareholders

Communications with shareholders are considered important by the Directors The pnmary contact with shareholders, investors and analysts is
the Chief Executive Officer The other Executive Directors, however, regularly speak to mnvestors and analysts dunng the year Company circulars
and press releases have also been issued throughout the year in relation to vanous proposals and for keeping investors informed about the
Group's progress

The Company also maintains a website on the internet iwww 1gasplc com) that 1s regularly updated and contans a wide range of information
about the Group
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Directors’ remuneration report

This report explains how deasions regarding directors’ pay are taken

Remit of the Remuneration Committee

The Committee compreses only Non-Executive Birectors; being charred by fohn Bryant and having as ather members Richard Anmstrong and
Peter Redmond The commuttee, which rormally meets at least twice a year, has resporsibility for making recommendations to the Board of
Directors on the Company’s policy on the remuneration of the Charman, Executive Directors and other senior executives (as s delegated to the
committee to consider) and for determining, within agreed terms of reference, specific remuneration packages for each of them, including
pension nights, any compensation payments and the implementation of executive incentive schemes In accordance with the committee’s terms
of reference, no Director may partiopate in discussions relating to their own terms and condrtions of service of remuneration

Nature of remuneration
The Remuneration Committee considers the followng as patentiat etements of reward

Annual Salary

Annual Bonus

Long-Term incenitive, and

Other Benefits, including Pension

These elements are considered in aggregate when assessing competiiveness against the market

Current arrangements

As explamed elsewhere in ths Annual Report, the Company was the subject of a reverse take over on 31 December 2007 (the "Reverse”),
whereby the Company became the legal parent of 1sland Gas Limited (“IGL") and IGL's three Directors became the Executive Directors of the
Company and together the holders of 84% of the Company’s 1ssued share caprtal

As part of the Reverse the Company chose to take over the employment arrangements that had apphed to the three Executive Directors, except
that therr contracts of employment were extended from one manth to twelve months’ notice, as deemned appropriate for an AlM listed
company Under these arrangements, the three Executive Diractors have no Long-Term Incentive Plan and are not entitled to any other Benefits,
including Pension, and received Annual Salary and Annual Bonuses, all earned as directors of 1GL, as follows

2007 2006
Salary Bonus Total Salary Bonus Total
Bxecutive Director £ £ £ £ f £
F Gugen — Chaimnan 100,000 - 100,000 100,000 - 100,000
A Austin = Chief Executive Officer 200,000 40,000 240,000 100,000 - 100,000
8 Cheshire - Technical Director 100,000 - 100,000 100,600 - 100,000
Total - Executive Directors 400,000 40,000 440,000 300,000 - 300,000

Each of the Executive Directors devotes such time as s required to dscharge his durties, which in the case of Andrew Austin s full time

Each Executne Drrector 15 entrtfed to recerve a borius dependent on the achievement of vanous objective targets and milestones as set by the
Remunerabon Committee

Non-Exeautive Directors are pad solely by fees (as disdlosed in Note 6 to the FumualStata-nmls)anddonotrecheanysaiary,penson,
benefits or bonuses
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Directors’ report

The Directors present therr report together with the Group and parent company financal statements for the year ended 31 December 2007

Reverse acquisrion and admission to AIM

On 31 December 2007 the Compary completed a reverse takeover whereby a private company, Istand Gas Limited (“1GL"), became a wholly-
owned submidiary of the Comparnty but wath IGL's shareholders acquinng 94% of the Ordinary Share caprtal of the combined entity (the
“Reverse) As part of the amangements related to the Reverse, which are all more fully descnbed m an admission document dated 27 Novernber
2007 (the “Admission Document ™) the following transactions and everts took place

e immedsately pnor to the Reverse, sale by the then group of s project activires and transfer of all related assets and habities, ndudng all
amounts connecied with the CVA (a5 desaibed below) to a third party; thereby extingushing the CVA from the Group's perspective,

* immediately pnor to the Reverse, ssue of warrants to the then directors of the Company,

e conversion of all exssting Ordinary 1p Shares by consolidation on a 50 for 1 basss into new Ordinary 50p Shares and corresponding rebasing
of all warrants and options m exstence at the time;

« mandatory conversion mito Ordinary 50p Shares of £900,000 of loan notes ssued at par on 2 November 2007 (the “Loan Notes”), with
each 55p of Loan Notes being converted mto one Ordinary Share,

»  acquisition of all IGL's share caprtal under a scheme of arrangement which became effective as of 28 December 2007 ({the “Scheme”) at an

agreed pnce of £50 million payable m Ordmary 50p Shares,

repurchase for 1p of all the Company’s deferred share capital created at the tirme of the CVA,

appontment of IGLs directors to the Board of the Company and as the Company’s new Executive team,

renaming the Company Island Gas Resounces ple (“1Gas™),

adoption of new artides of assoaation, and

re-admission to AIM on 31 December 2007 (AIM Ticker IGAS)

As a result of the Reverse and in accordance with International Finanaial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted for use in the European Union
and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 1985, the Group’s results up 10 the date of the Reverse become those of
IGL Accordmgly, and because afl the Group's pre-Reverse projects were not matenal and have been sold to a third party, alt descnpbions of
operations and actnty for the year relate solely to the 1GL business

Creditors Voluntary Arrangement (“CVA™)
On 10 April 2007 the Company entered nto a CVA, as explained n more detad m the Company’s 2006 Annual Report and Accounts, m a
Circular to shareholders dated 16 March 2007 and m the Admmssion Document.

As part of the Reverse, vanations were made to the CVA which brought the CVA to an end from the Group's perspective, with the Company no
longer bemng bound by the condrtions set out m the CVA The supervisors of the CVA rsued therr discharge notice on 31 January 2008

Business review and future developments
A review of the business and the future developments of the Group s presented in the Chairman's Statement on page 4 and in the Group’s
Business Review on pages 6 to 11

Results and dividends
The Group loss for the year after taxation was £2,014,522 (2006 proht £62,264) including a charge for the impairment of goodwill ansing on
the Reverse of £2,039,764 (2006 £rul) The directors do not recommend the payment of a dvidend for the year

The directors are satisfied that the Group has adequate resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future and that it ss, therefore,
appropnate 1o adopt the going concern basis In prepanng the financial statements

Principal activity

The Group's pnnapal actvity s coal bed methane (“CBM*), intended to result m the production and marketing of methane gas for mdustnal
and domestic use from vingin coal seams wathm its UK acreage This requires acreage to be explored, apprased and developed and m
connection with which the Group also provides techrecal and other related seraces

Share and loan caprtal
The following transactions ogcurred m the share and loan capital of the Company dunng the year

« 10 Apnl 2007 — Each ssued Ordmary 1p Share was subdvided mito one deferred 95p share and one new Ordmary 05p Shase,

¢ 10 Apnl 2007 - Each new Ordinary 05p Share was consohdated on a one to twenty basis mto a new consolidated Ordinary 1p Share,

e 10 Apnl 2007 - The authorsed share capital of the Company was mcreased by £5 miffion to £6 milion through the oeation of 500 mihon
Orchinary 1p Shares;

¢ 10 Apnl 2007 - The Board allctted 75 mdhon Ordmary 1p Shares pursuant to a fund rasmng;

e 10 Apnl 2007 — The Board allotted 6 5 milhon Ordinary 1p Shares as consideration for services provided to the Company in the aggregate
total amourt of £65,000, payable for fees,

s 10 Apnl 2007 - The Company granted warrants to acquire up to 4,i91,474 Ordmary Shares at a pnice of 1p each Following the Reverse
these have been rebased a8 nghts to acqume 83,830 at a prce of 50p each,

* 2 November 2007 - The Cornpany ssued £900,000 of Loan Notes at par value,

* 7 November 2007 — The Company aflotted 832,127 Ordinary 1p Shares to former credrtors pursuant to the CVA,

e 27 December 2007 — Each existing Ordinary 1p Share was consolidated on a one for fifty basss nto one share of S0p,
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Directors’ report continued

« 27 December 2007 — The authonsed share capital of the Company was increased by £39 milion to £45 milion through the aeation of

78 millhon new Ordinary S0p Shares,

27 Decermber 2007 — The Company repurchased afl the ssued deferred shares for an aggregate amount of 1p,

27 December 2007 - The Company sssued 440,000 warrants to three directors and one former director of the Company;

31 December 2007 — The Company ssued 1,636,364 Ordinary S0p Shares at a pnce of 55p each to redeem the Loan Notes,

31 December 2007 — The Company ssued 55,555,365 Ordinary 50p Shares at a pnice of 90p each to the shareholders of IGL In

corsderation for the acquistbon of thex shares, and

¢ 31 Decemnber 2007 — The Company ssued 222,222 Ordmary 50p Shares as consideration for services provided to the Company for the
aggregate total amount of £200,000 payable for fees

Directors and therr interests
The directors who served dunng the year were as follows

F R Gugen Executrve Chairman Appointed 27 December 2007
AP Austin Chief Exacutve Officer Appointed 27 December 2007
B Cheshire Technical Director Appeinted 27 Decermnber 2007
J Bryant Non-Executve/Chairman until 27 December 2007 Served throughout the year

R J Amastrong Non-Exeautive Appomted 10 April 2007

P Redmond Non-Executve Appomted 10 Apnl 2007

S Drummond Resigned 14 March 2007

P Goodrow Resigned 14 March 2007

D Lindley, OBE Resigned 27 November 2007
D Uoyd-Jacob Resigned 14 March 2007

The mterests of the directors in the shares of the Company at 31 Decernber 2007 were as follows

31 December 2007 3% December 2006 31 December 31 December

Ordinary 50p Shares Ordinary S0p Shares 2007 2006

Number % Number % Warrants® Wamants

F R Gugen 27419,097 46 39 - - - -
AP Austin 13,429,253 1934 - - ~- -
B Cheshire 11,429,253 1934 - - - -
J Bryant 50,370 009 370* 079 110,600 -
R J Armstrong 20,000 c03 - - 110,000 -
P Redmond 20,000 003 - - 110,000 -

* The number of shanes held by Mr Bryant has been rebased to take acoount of the share corsofidabons dunng 2007
# Of the warrants issued to each Non-Executive Director 82 500 are exercsable mto Ordinary 50p Shiares at a price of 55p per Ordinary Share and 27 500 are exercsable at a price of 75p
per Ordmary Share

Subject to the condiions set out in the Companies Act 1985, the Company has arranged appropnate Directors and Officers insurance to
indemnify the directors and officers agamst lability in respect of proceedings brought by third parties Such provision remains in force at the
date of this report.

In accordance with the Articles of Assoaation J Bryant and R } Anmstrong retire by rotation and being eligible offer thernselves for re-efechon

Directors’ indemnity provisions

The Company indemnifies the Directors against actions they undertake or fail to undertake as Directors or Officers of any Group company, to
the extertt permissible for such mdemnrties to meet the test of a qualfying thid party mdemnity provision as provided for by the Companies
Acts 1985 and 2006 The nature and extent of the indemnities s as descaribed n Sechion 60 of the Company’s Artides of Assoaation as
adopted on 27 December 2007

Substantial shareholders
Apart from the directors’ holdings, the only other holding 1n excess of 3% of the share caprtal of the Comparty at the date of ths report was
R Smith who held 2,564,100 shares represeriting 4 3% of the Ordinary Shares i ssue

Finanaal instruments

The Group's pnnaipal financial iInstruments compnse cash balances and other debtors and creditors that anse through the narmal course of
business as set out in notes 12 to 15 to the consahdated financial statements The Group’s financial nsk management objectves are set out in
the Business Review on page 10

Employment policy

It 5 the policy of the Group to operate a far emplayment policy No employee or job applicant s less favourably treated than another on the
grounds of ther sex, sexual onentation, age, mantal status, refigion, race, nationaity, ethmic or natonal ongin, colour or disability and all
appomtments and promotians are deterrined solely on ment. The directors encourage employees to be aware of all ssues affectng the Group
and place considerable emphass on employees sharmg in its success
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Creditor payment pelicy and practice

it 1s the Group's normal practice to agree payment terms wath its supphers and abide by such terms Payment becomes due when it can be
confirmed that goods andor services have been provided tn accordance with the refevant contractual conditions The amount owed by the
Company to trade creditors at the end of the financial year represented four days of daily purchases for the Company (2006 Not applicable as
the Company had no trade credrtors)

Charitable and political contnbutions
Dunng the year, the Group made no chantable or poliical donations

Status
The Company 1s not a dose company as defined in the Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988

The Company s domialed in the UK and incorporated and registered in Engtand

Board committees
information on the Audt, Remuneration and Nomination committees s mctuded in the Corporate Governance section of the annuat report on
pages 14 and 15

Audrtors

Ernst & Young LLP was appointed by the Board as audrtors to the Company in 2008 to fil a casual vacancy ansing as a result of the resignation
of Moore Stephens A resalution to appoint Emst & Young LLP as audrtor will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting at a fee to be agreed
i due course by the Audit Committee and the Board

Directors” statement as to disdosure of information to the audrtors

So far as each person who was a director at the date of approving this report s aware, there 15 no relevant audrt mformation, being information
needed by the audrtor In connection with prepanng its report, of which the audrtor 1s unaware Having made enguines of fellow directors, each
director has taken all the steps that a director might reasonably be expected to have taken as a director in order to make himself aware of any
relevant audit mformation and to estabish that the Company’s auditor s aware of that mforrnation

Annual General Meeting
The Annual General Meeting will be held on 7 July 2008 as stated in the Nobice of Meeting which accompanies thss Annual Report

By ovder of the Board
Mofo Secretanes Limited

Segetary
19 May 2008
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Consolidated finandal statements —
directors’ statement of responsibilities in respect thereof

The Directors are responsible for prepaning the Annual Report and Group financial statements in accordance with applicable United Kingdom
law and those International Finanaal Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union

The directors are required to prepare Group financial statements for each financial year which present fairly the financial position of the Group |
and the financiai performance and cash flows of the Group for that penod In prepanng those Group financial statements the directors are
required to

o select suitable acoouniing poliges m accordance with (AS 8 Accounting pofioes, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors and then
apply them consistently,

+  present nformation, induding accounting poliaes, in a manner that prowdes relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable information,

+ provide addrtional disclosures when compliance with the speafic requirements in IFRSs 1s insufficent to enable users to understand the
impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the Group's financial position and financial performance,

»  state that the Group has complied wath IFRSs, subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements, and

« prepare the financial staterments on the going concern basis unless it 1s INappropnate to presume that the Group will continue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial postion of
the Group and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985 They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
ather imegulanties
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Island Gas Resources plc

We have audrted the Group financial staterments of Island Gas Resources plc (the Company) and 1ts subsidianies (the Group) for the year ended
31 December 2007 which comprise the Consolidated Income Staternent, the Consohdated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, and the related Notes 1 to 21 These Group finangal statements have been prepared
under the accounting pohces set out theren

We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements of Istand Gas Resources plc for the year ended 3t December 2007

This report 5 made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 Our audnt work
has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are requured to state to themn in an audrtor’s report
and for no ather purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibifity to anyone other than the Company
and the Company’s members as 3 body, for our audt work, for this report, or for the opimons we have formed

Respective responsibiliies of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibiliies for prepanng the Annual Report and the Group financial statements in accordance with applicable Unrted
Kingdom law and Intemational Financal Reportng Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union are set out i the Statement of
Drectors’ Responsibilibes

Our responsibility s to audtt the Group financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)

We report to you our opinion as to whether the Group financial statements give a true and fair view and whether the Group financal
statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 We alsa report to you whether in our opinion the
infarmation given in the Directors’ Report 1s consistent with the Group financial statemenits The information given in the Directors’ Report
indudes that specific Information presented in the Charman's Statement and the Business Review that s cross referred from the Business
Rewiew and Future Developmenits section of the Directors’ Report

in addiion we report to you if, m our opinion, we have not recetved all the information and explanations we require for our audrt, or
information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and ather transactions 1s not disclosed

We read other information contamned in the Annual Report and consider whether it 1s consistent with the audited Group financial statements
The other information compnses only the Chairman’s Statement, the Business Review, the Corporate Governance Report, the

Directors’ Remuneration Report and the Directors’ Report We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent
misstatements or matena) nconsistencies with the Group financial statements Qur responsibiities do not extend to any other information

Basis of audrt opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Audrting (UK and Ireland) ssued by the Auditing Practices Board An
audn includes examination, on a test basis, of ewdence relevant to the amounts and disclosures 11 the Group financial statements It also
includes an assessmenit of the significant estimates and judgements made by the directors 1n the preparation of the Group financial statements,
and of whether the accounting polices are appropnate to the Group's arqumstances, consistently applied and adequately disdosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtamn all the mformation and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us
with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the Group financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused
by fraud or ather irregulanty or error in forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the
Group financial statements

Opinion
In our opinon

s the Group financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, of the state of the
Group's affairs as at 31 December 2007 and of its loss for the year then ended,
» the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Compantes Act 1985, and

« the information given in tl}e Durectors’ Report 1s consistent with the Group finanaal staterments

Emst & Young LLP b b U/?
Registered Audrtors
London

19 May 2008
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Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31 December 2007

Nates 2007 2006
(o] £ £
Revenue 3 810,595 596,557
Cost of sales (725,508)  (480,229)
Gross profit 85,087 115,328
Adminstrative expenses (69,510) (50,344)
Exceptional nem - Impairment of goodwill on Reverse 7 (2,039,764) -
Operating {(lossyprofit 4 (2,024187) 65,984
Finance income 8 16,603 15,866
(Loss¥profit on ordinary activities before tax {2,007,584) 81,850
Tax on (loss)fprofit on ordinary activities 9 {6,938) (19,586)
Retained (lossyprofit for the year {2,014,522) 62,264
Basic and diluted {loss)/earnings per share (£/share) 10 (0360) 00N
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Consolidated balance sheet

As at 31 December 2007
Notes 2007 2006
o £ £
Non-current assets
Intangible exploration and evaluaton assets n 108,917 14,032
Property plant and equipment - -
108,917 14,032
Current assets
Trade and other recenvables 12 282,171 33,162
Cash and cash equivalents 13 1,414,043 226,813
1,696,814 259,975
Current liabilrbes
Trade and cther payables 14 {750,894) (50 523}
Current taxation fiabilibes 14 (993) {19,145)
(751,887) (69,668)
Net current assets 944,927 190,307
Total assets less current (abilities 1,053,844 204,339
Non-current liahilities
Trade and other payables 15 (77,725) -
Net assets 976,119 204,339
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 18 2,664,344 668
Preference shares - 44,000
Share premium account 44,500 44,500
Share warrant reserve 166,626 —
{Accumulated defictyretamed earnings {1,899,351) 115,171
Shareholders’ funds 976,119 204,339

These financal staternents were approved and authonsed for ssue by the Board on 19 May 2008 and are signed on its behalf by

% / -
Franos Gugen Andrew Austin

Charman Chref Executsve Officer
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 31 December 2007

Share  {Accumulated
Called up Share warrant defiaty
share caprtal Preference premium reserve retained
(Note 18) Shares aceount Note 19) eamings Total
£ £ £ £ £ £
Balance at 1 January 2006 668 44,000 44,500 - 52,907 142,075
Changes in equity for 2006
Profit for year 62,264 62,264
Balance at 31 December 2006 668 44,000 44,500 - 11511 204,339
Changes in equity for 2007
Loss for the year (2.014,522) (2,014,522)
Reverse and scheme of amangement 2,663,676 2,663,676
Redempuon of preference shares, at par (44,000) (44,000}
Share based payments 166,626 166,626
Balance at 31 December 2007 2,664,344 - 44,500 166,626 {1,899,351) 976,119
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Consoldated financal statements
Annual report and accounts 2007 Consolidated cash flow statement

Notes 2007 2006
1) £ £

Operating activities
Retained (loss)profit for the year (2,014,522) 62,264
Impairment of goodwill on Reverse 7 2039764 -
Finance income 8 {16,603) (15,866}
Deferred tax 9 - (66)
(Increase}decrease in trade and other recevables {170,006) 161,905
Increasef{decrease) in trade and other payables 106,107 (670,292}
{Decrease) in current taxation habiliies (18.152) {10,055)
Increase in non-current habilies 77,7125 -
Net cash from/{used in} operating activities 4,313 472,110
Investing activities
Acqustion of exploration and evaluation assets 1" (94,885) (14,032)
Interest recerved 8 16.603 15,866
Net cash (used n)/from investing activiies {78,282) 1,834
Finanang activities
Cash acguired on Reverse 2 1,305,199 -
Redemption of preference shares (24,000) -
Net cash from finanang activities 1,261,199 -
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents in the year 1,187,230 {470,276}
Cash and cash equivalents at the begmning of the year 226,813 697,089
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,414,043 226,813
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Consolidated finandal statements — notes
As at 31 December 2007

1 Acountmg polides

(a) Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements have been prepared under the hstoncal cost convention in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards, adopted for use by the European Umion (“IFRS”), and with those parts of the Comparues Act 1985 apphcable to companies
prepanng their accounts under IFRS

The Group financia! statements are presented in Sterling and all values are rounded to the nearest pound except when otherwsse indicated
Certan new standards, mterpretations and amendments to existing standards have been publshed and are mandatory for the Group's

accounting peniods beginming on or after 1 January 2008 o Later periods but which the Group has not adopted early Those that may be
applicable to the Group are as follows

Effective date
International Accountting Standards (LAS/IFRSs)
IFRS 2 Amendment to IFRS 2 —Vesting Condrtions and Cancellations 1 January 2009
IFRS 3 Busmness Combinations (revised January 2008) 1 July 2009
IFRS 8 Operating Segments 1 January 2009
1AS1 Presentation of Fnanaal Statementts (revsed September 2007) 1 January 2009
IAS 23 Bomowmng Costs {revised March 2007) 1 January 2009
1AS 27 Consohdated and Separate Finanaal Statements (revised January 2008) 1 July 2009
Intemnational Finandal Reporting Interpretations Commuttee (IFRIC)
IFRIC 12 Service Concesston Arrangements 1 January 2008

The Directors do net antiapate that the adoption of these standards and interpretatrons will have a matenal impact on the Group's financal
statements in the penod of inrial apphcation

(b} Going concern

After making enquines, and because in particular of the Nexen Carry Agreements (as descnibed in Note 11}, the Directors are satisfied that the
Group has adequate resources to continue In operational existence for the foreseeahle future For this reason, the Directors continue to adopt
the going concern basis i prepaning the financal statements

() Basis of consohdation
The consolidated financial staternents prasent the results of the Company and its subsidharies the “Group™) as if they formed a single entity
Intercompany transactions and balances between Group companies are therefore elmimated in full

On 31 December 2007 the Company completed a reverse takeover whereby a private comparty, ksland Gas Lirmited {“IGL"), became a wholly-
owned subsdiary of the Company but with IGL's shareholders acquinng 94% of the Ordinary Share caprtal of the combined entity (the
"Reverse”), these arangements, being more fully desmbed in an admission document dated 27 Novernber 2007 {the "Admssion Document”}
As a result of the Reverse and in accordance with IFRS and the prowvisions of the Companies Act 1985 the Group's results up to the date of the
Reverse become those of IGL and the comparative financial information s therefore that of IGL At 31 December 2007 the Group compnised the
Company and fts subsidianes IGL and KP Renewables {Operations) Limited

{d) Reverse acquisttions

A business combination where the company makng the acquistion ends up under the control of the shareholders of the company being
acquired s considered to be a reverse takeover In the event of a reverse takeover, consolidated financial statements following the takeover are
prepared based pnmarly on the financial statements of the company being acquired (the acquiree), essentially as if it was in fact the acquiree
making the aogqumsibon

(e) Joint ventures

The Group's beence interests are all hetd jomtly wath others under arrangemnents whereby unmcorporated and jointly controlled foint Ventures
are used 10 explore, evaluate and ulimately develop and produce fts gas interests Accordingly, the Group accounts for its share of assets,
labilties, income and expendrture of Joint Ventures in which the Group holds an interest, dassified in the appropnate Balance Sheet and Income
Staternent headmgs, except where ts share of such amounts remain the responsibility of another party i accordance with the terms of the
carned interests as desanbed at () below

(H Significant accounting jJudgements and estimates

Crtical judgements n applying the Group's accountng polices

The Group invests In the exploration, evaluation, development and production of gas from the UK The assessment of the production rates to
be denved from such expenditure 15 a matter of judgement, as s the forecasting of the future economic benefit that may be denved from such
production Finally, the period of time over which the ecanomic benefit associated with the expenditure occurred will anse is also a matter of
Judgerment These judgements affect the carrying value of ron-current assets and imparrment calculations related to such assets
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1 Accounting pofices continued

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a significant nsk
of causing a matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilrises within the next financial year are discussed below

e Current taxes
The Group makes provision for liabilities to income taxes Significant judgement can be required in determiming these liabilites There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination s, in the ordinary course of business, uncerian The Group
recognises habiles for taxabon issues which are open at the year end on the basis of whether it 15 more likely than not that a habirty will
ulumately crystallse Where the final tax outcome of such matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the incore tax and deferred tax provisions in the penod in which such determination s made AllofiGLand a
number of the Company and ather subsidiary tax computations have yet to be formally signed off by the UK tax authorties

« Camyng value of intangible exploraton and evaluation assets
The Group has caprtatised mtangible exploration and evatuation assets m accordance with IFRS 6, which are evaluated for impamment as
described at () below Any impairment reviews, where required, involve significant judgement related to matters such as recoverable
reserves, production profiles, gas and electnerty prices, development, operating and offtake costs, nature of land access agreements and
planning permissions, application of local and central taxes, and other matters Where the final outcome or revised estimates related to such
matters differ from the estimates used m any earlier impairment reviews, the results of such drfferences, to the extent that they actually
affect any impaimment provigicns, are accounted for when such revisions are made

(g) Exceptional rtems
Exceptional tterms are those not considered to be part of the normal operation of the business Such rtems are identified a3 exceptional and a full
explanation 1s given In the notes to the financial statements

(h) Revenue

Revenue compnses the nvoiced value of goods and services supphied by the Group, net of value added tax and trade discounts Revenue s
recognised in the case of gas sales when goods are delivered and trtle has passed and In the case of services rendered only once a legally
bndmng contract 5 m place Amourtts billed for services where the contract provides for therr delivery over a penod of time are recognrsed evenly
over the relevant peniod, amounts due for all other services are recognsed as the services are provided

() Non-current assets (intangible exploration and evaluation assets and property plant and equipment)

Intangible exploration and evahuation assets

The Group accounts for exploration and evaluation costs in accordance with the requiremenits of IFRS 6 “Exploration for and Evaluation of
Mmeral Resources” as follows

Exploration and evaluation assets are camed at cost less any impament and are not depreaated or amortised

=  Expendrtures recognssed as exploration and evaluation assets comprse those related to acquisiion of nghts to explore, topographical,
geologscal, geochenical and geophysical studies, exploratory dnlimg (inchuding coring and sampling), activities m relation to evaluating the
technical feasibiiity and commeraal vabrity of extracting gas (indudmg apprasal dnfting and production tests); any land nghts acquired for
the sole purpose of effecting these activibes.

»  Expenditures not recognised as exploration and evaluation assets indude those related to development and production costs and any costs
incurred prior to obtaining the legal nghts to explore an area, these latter costs are expersed immedsately to the Income Statement

¢ Tanglble assets acquired for use 1n exploration and evaluation actnities are classified as property, plant and equipment, interests in oll and
gas properties However, 1o the extent that such tangible assets are consumed in developing an mtangible exploration and evaluation asset,
the amount reflecting that consumption 1s recorded as part of exploration and evaluation asset costs

«  Expendttures recognised as exploration and evaluation assets are inmally accumulated and capttalised by reference to appropnate
geographsc areas, which may not be larger than a busmess segment, currently the entirety of the Company’s UK gas business

» Expenditures recognsed as exploration and evaluation assets are transferred to property plant and equipment, interests in ofl and gas
propertes when technica! feasibility and commeraa! viability of extracting gas 1s demonstrable Exploration and evaluation assets are
assessed for impairment (on the basis described below), and any impairment loss recognised, before reclassification

»  Expenditures recognised as exploration and evaluation assets are tested for imparment (on the basis described below) whenever facts and
arcumstances suggest that they may be mmparred, which indudes when a licence s approaching the end of its term and 5 not expected to
be renewed, there are no substariive plans for contmued exploration or evaluation of an area, the Group deades to abandon an area,
whilst development s tikely to proceed in an area there are ndicabons that the exploraton and evaluation asset costs are unfikely to be
recovered in full erther by development or through sale tn the event of goodwaill ansing on an acquisiion being allocated to explorabon and
evaluabon assets, mpammnent s tested for at least annually, as descnbed m the goodwill note below

. NetpmceedsfmmanydisposalofexploratonandevabaﬁmassetsaemmaﬂyaednedagamWemtslycapnalsedm.mmany
surphss proceeds bemg credited to the consohdated Income Statement.
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1

Accounting polidies continued

Property plant and equipment, interests in oil and gas properties
Property plant and equipment, mterests m oil and gas properties are those assets which have been assessed for economic recoverabiity and are
accounted for as follows

Expendrture relating to evaluated properties 15 depleted on a unrt-f-production basts, commencing at the start of commeraal production
The depletion charge s calculated according to the proportion that production bears to the recoverable reserves for each property

The Group's property plant and equipment, interests n oll and gas properties are assessed for ndications of imparment whenever events or
changes In arcumnstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable, when imparment s computed on the basts as
set out below Any iImpairment in value s charged to the Income Statement as addional depreaation

Net proceeds from any disposal of development/produang assets are compared to the previcisly capitalsed costs for the relevant asset or
group of assets AgamoriossondlsposalcfadevebpmemlproduungassetlsrecomsedmmehomneStatememwﬁleextemﬂlatthe
net proceeds exceed or are less than the appropnate portion of the net capralsed costs of the asset or group of assets

Impairment
Imparment reviews, when required as described above, are cammed out on the followng basss.

By companng the sum of any amounts camed as exploration and evaluation assets and as property plant and equipment, interests in od and
gas properties as compared to the recoverable amournt

The recoverable amount 15 the higher of an asset’s far value less costs to self and #s value in use The Group generally relies on farr value less
o5t 1o sell assessed erther by reference to comparable market transactions between a willing buyer and a willng seller or on the same basts

as used by wilhing buyers and seliers in the oil Industry When assessing value In use, the estimated future cash flows are discourted to ther

present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the nsks specific to the
asset or cash-generating unit

» Where there has been a charge for impairment in an earler peniod, that charge will be reversed n a later penod where there has been a
change i arcumstances to the extent that the recoverable amount & higher than the net book value at the time In reversing imparment
losses, the Garmymy amount of the asset will be naeased to the lower of ts ongmal camying value or the carrying value that woutd have
been determined (net of depietion) had no impairment loss been recognised in pnor pertods

Decommissionng

Where approprate costs relating to decommissioning of gas assets are frecognised when the related facitiies are installed; the amount
recognised is discounted to its present value and is reflected in the Group’s non-current labslties A corresponding asset 15 included n the
Group's property plant and equipment, interest m ol and gas properties The asset s depleted in accordance with the Group's policy on
depletion

Camed interests

Where the Group has entered into camed miterest agreements, no armounts are recorded 1n the accounts where expenditure incurred under
such agreements is not refundable Where expendriure 5 refundable, out of what would but for the carry agreements have been the
Company’s share of production, the Company records amounts as non-current assets, with a corresponding offset in cument hiabilries or non-
current habilities, as appropnate, but only once 1t s apparent that it s more likely than not that future production wall be adequate to resuttm a
refund under the terms of any camy agreement, when the Group records refunds only to the extent that they are expected to be repayable

Non oil and gas related property plant and equiprnent

Other property plant and equipment is stated at net book value, 1 e cost less depreaation Deprecation Is provided at rates calculated to wite
off the cost of fixed assets, less their estimated residual values, over thewr estmated useful lives at the followng rates, with any impairment being
accounted for as addrtional depreciation

Computer equipment — over three years on a straight line basis
Furniture and fixtures — gver five years on a straight Ine basis
Leasehold property improvemnents — over the penod of the lease

() Fnanaal mstruments

Cash and cash equvalents

Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash on hand and cash held on current account or on short-term depowts at variable interest rates with
maturity periods of up to three months Any interest earmed 15 accrued monthly and classified as interest income within finance income

Trade and other recevables
Trade recevables are recognsed when imvoiced and are cammed at the onginal nvoiced amount tess any allowances for doubtfu! debts Other
recervables are recognised and measured at nomenal value

Trade and other payables and cument taxation habiliies
These habilties are ali non mterest beanng and so are measured at cost

Non-current habilies — Trade payables
These habiliies are all non interest beanng and so are measured at cost
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1 Accounting poliaes continued
(k) Operating leases
Rertals under operating leases are charged to the consolidated Income Statement on a straight line basis over the period of the lease

{) Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of current tax and defesred tax

The current tax is based on taxable (lossyprofit for the year Taxable (loss¥profit differs from the (lossifprofit before taxation as reported in the
Income Statement because 1t excludes tems of Income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that
are neves taxable or deductible The Group's hiabity for current tax s calaulated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantvely enacted
by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax is recognssed in respect of ail tming differences that have enginated but not reversed at the balance sheet date Timing differences
anse from the mdusion of tems of income and expenditure In taxation computations in penods different from those in which they are included

In the financial statements Deferred tax liabilities are not discounted Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it regarded as more
hkely than not that they will be recovered

(m) Share based payments

Where share options or warrants are awarded to employees (nduding directars), the far value of the options or warrants at the date of the
grant s recorded m equity over the vesting period Non-market vesting conditons are taken into account by adjusting the number of equity
mstruments expected to vest at each balance sheet date so that, ulimately, the cumulative amount recognised over the vesting period s based
on the number of options that eventually vest Market vesting conditions are factored in to the farr value of the options or warrants granted As
long as all other vesting conditions are satsfied, the amount recorded 1s computed irrespective of whether the market vesting conditions are
satisfied The cumulatwe amount recognised 15 not adjusted for the falure to achieve a market vesting condition, although equrty no longer
required for options or warrants may be transferred to another equity reserve

Where the terms and conditions of options or warrants are modified before they vest, the increase in the fair value of the options, measured
immediately before and after the modification, 1s also recorded in equity over the remaining vesting penod

Where equity mstruments are granted to persans other than emplayees, the amount recognised in eguity & the fair value of goods and senices
recerved

Charges commesponding to the amounts recognsed in equrty are accourtted for in the same manner as retated costs met m cash, which wall
usually be to the Consolidated tncome Statement unless the services rendersed {and discharged by share based payments) relate to an ssuance of
equity or qualiy for caprtalsation as a nan-cutrent asset In the case of an ssuance of equity, the charge s to the same equity reserve as cash
costs related to such an ssuance would be charged Costs may be caprialsed within non-cumrent assets i the event of services being rendered
i connection with an acquistion or mangible exploration and evaluation assets or property plant and equipment

{n) Equrty
Equity mstruments ssued by the Company are mﬂymcudedmmepmmedsmmwd.nauhﬁedmm,andaﬂmamdbetwemcaﬂed
up share caprtal and share prerrsum accourts as appropnate

However, as required by IFRS 3, the effect on the Group’s Equrty of the Reverse 15 to extingush all previously recorded amounts and to record
instead amounts equal to the deemed cost of the Reverse, being the adjusted market vatue of the Company a5 last quoted immediately prior to
the announcement of the Reverse, plus the Equity of IGL, the effective acquinng company See Note 2 for further information on the Reverse
Alo retamed withm Group Equrty s the aost of outstanding warrants ssted by the Compary and surviving the Reverse

2 Business combination

On 31 December2007ﬂweConmanycompietedarwersetakeavemhembyapwatempany.IsiarﬂGasLmrted("lGL"),becameawholly—
owned subsidiary of the Company but with IGL's shareholders acquinmng 94% of the Ordinary Share capital of the combined entity (the
“Reverse”)

IGL 5 a private company aperatng in England and Wales, whose prmapal actvity s Coal 8ed Methane

As a result of the Reverse, and m accordance with IFRS, the cost of the busmess combmnation and the farr vatue of the assets acquired are those
ofmeCanpmy(theermtywhsdnsdeermdtohavebemacquned)atmedateofacquanm,mﬁIIGmegmedemmdacquwerwhose
assets and habikties have not been re-measured

Immediately pror to the Reverse, the Company held £1,305,199 of cash and cash equivalents, winch was acquired by the Group at the date of
the Reverse and has been induded as a financing tem for the purposes of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
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Consolidated finandial statements — notes continued
As at 31 December 2007

2 Business combmation continued
The book and farr values of the Company's net assets at the date of acquission were as follows

Faur value

Book value to Group

£ £

Trade and other recenvables 79,603 79,603
Cash and cash equialents 1,305,199 1,305,199
Trade and other payables (594,264) (594,264
Net assets 790,538 790,538
Goodwill ansing on Reverse, wiitten off 2,039,764
2,830,302

Dscharged by

Farr value of equity of Company wssued on Reverse 2,663,676
Fair value of warrants of Company taken over 166,626
2,830,302

From the date of the Reverse to 31 December 2007, the contnbution of the Company {the entrty which s deemed to have been acquired) 1o the
loss of the Group was £2,039,764, representing the mnpatrment of goodwall on Reverse, as explained in Note 7

If the combination had taken place at the beginning of 2007, the results of the Group would have been unchanged from those as reported,
except for £32,900 being the effect of interest ncome eamed on cash acquired net of the costs of the Reverse Accordingly, the retamned loss
for the year would have been £1,981,622 and the revenue from continuing operations of £810,595

3 Revenue and segment information
All reveniue which represented tumover arose within the Unrted Kingdom and = attributable to actmties in the Coal Bed Methane {CBM) sector

4 Operating profit

2007 2006
£ £

Operating profit is stated after charging
Audrtors remunesation
Charged to Consolidated income Statement
Audt of the financial statements* - -
Other fees paid to Ernst & Young LLP — Audits of subsidianes 21,513 16,396
Not charged to Consolidated Incorme Statement
Audtt of the financiat statements — Ernst & Young LLP 20,000 -
Audrt of the financial statements — Moore Stephens LLP - 20,000
Other fees paid to Moore Stephens LLP — Tax senices - 2,000
Depreaation of property, plant and equipment {owned by Group} - -
Operating lease rentals - -

* Audit foes relating to the audit of the annual financial statements have nat been charged to the Consolidated Income Statement due to the use of reverse acquisibon accounting
principles such fees having been charged to the Company’s income statement prior to the Reverse

5 Employee mformation

2007 2006
£ [
Staff costs compnsed
Wages and salanes 494,314 336,521
Pension contnbutions - -
494,314 336,521
Capntalsed - (2,925)

494,314 333,596

No. No
Average number of employees in the penod
Services 2
Adminstrative 1 1
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6 Directors’ emoluments
The remuneration of the directors for the year was as follows

2007 2006
£ £
Charged to Consolidated Income Statement
Directors’ emolurments and benefits compnsed

Cwrectors’ emoluments 440,000 300,000
Pension contnbutions -

440,000 300,000

The highest paid director received emoluments and benefits as follows
Emoluments 240,000 100,000
Pension contributions - -

240,000 100,000

Not charged to Consolidated Income Statement:
Directors’ emoluments and benefits comprsed

Amounts payable in respect of qualifying services 56,063 259,736
Share based payments 131,208 -
Soaal security cost - 6,453
Pension contnbutions - 11,000

187,271 277189

The highest paid director received emoluments and benefits as follows
Emoluments 54,927 108,333
Pension contrbutions - -

54,927 108,333

Directors’ emoluments charged to the Consolidated Income Statement are those of the directors of 4GL. who were ako directors of the
Company at 31 December 2007, for services rendered as directors of IGL dunng the year, whuch fall due to be charged to the Consohdated
Income Staternent under reverse acqursition accounting pnnaples (see Nate 1 above)

Directors’ emolurments not charged te the Consohdated Income Staternent are those paid to the directors of the Company pror to the Reverse
P Redmond, a director prior to the Reverse, 1s also a director of Merchant Caprtal Limited, which recerved payments from the Company as set
out n Note 20

Of the directors’ emotuments not charged to the Consolidated Income Statement in 2006, £121,721 in total and £66,667 relating to the highest
paid director remamed unpaid at 31 December 2006 and were subsequently largely forferted as part of the CVA

Directors’ warrants
At 31 December 2007 the directors held warrants over the Ordinary Shares of 50p each of the Company as follows, for which they paid £nil
and all of which were granted on 27 December 2007

2006  Exercse prce Exerasable 2007
Number {pvshare) at any ume up to Number
R Armstrong 0 55 31 December 2010 82,500
(] 75 31 December 2010 27,500
J Bryant 0 55 31 December 2010 82,500
0 75 31 December 2010 27,500
P Redmond 0 55 31 December 2010 82,500
0 75 31 December 2010 27,500

The share pnce at 31 December 2007, the date of re-admssion, was 72 5p

7 Exceptional item - impairment of goodwill on reverse

2007 2006
£ £
Impamment of goodwll on Reverse 2,039,764 -

As a result of the Reverse (see Note 1 (c) above) the Group meurred goodwill on acquisiion of £2,039,764 related to the Company, which had
no cash generating units at acquesbon, and which was consdered not to relate to any of IGL's cash generating uruts, and so has been mparred
in full
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8 Finance income

2007 2006
£ £
Interest recewvable compnsed
Bank interest 16.603 15,866
Bank interest represents the total interest ncome for financial assets not at farr value through profit and loss
9 Tax on (loss)/profit on ordinary activities
2007 2006
£ £
UK corporation tax.
Current tax on mcome for the year 6,888 19,145
Adjustments in respect of prior year 50 507
Tota! UK taxation 6,938 19,652
Deferred tax - {66)
Tax on (lossyprofit on ordinary activities 6,938 19,586

Factors affecting the tax charge
The tax assessed for the year does not reflect a charge equivalent to the profit on ordinary actvities multiplied by the standard rate of
corporation tax in the United Kmgdom of 19% (2006 19%), for small compantes The differences are explained below

2007 2006

£ £

(Loss¥profit on ordinary activities before tax (2.007,584) 81,850
{Loss¥profit on ordinary activities muttiphed by the standard rate of corporation tax

in the UK for small compares (19%) (381,440) 15,551

Tax effect of Exceptionat tem - Goodwill on Reverse written off 387,555 -

Tax effect of expenses not allowable for tax purposes 336 644

Costs related to Petroliferous Trade not tnggered 437 2,884

Prior year adjustment 50 507

Tax on (lossVprofit on ordinary activities 6,938 19,586

Information regarding the Group's tax losses 1s presented in Note 15

10 (Loss)fearmnings per share (EPS)
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dwiding the profrt for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent by the weighted average
number of Qrdinary Shares outstanding dunng the year

Diluted £PS amounts are calculated by dwiding the profit attnbutable to the ordinary equity holders of the parent by the weighted average
number of shares outstanding duning the year plus the weighted average number of Ordinary Shares that would be ssued on the conversion of
all the dilutive potential Ordinary Shares into Ordinary Shares

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted earrungs per share computations

2007 2006
Basic EPS — Ordinary Shares of 50p each (0360) 001t
Diluted EPS ~ Ordinary Shares of 50p each (0360) 0011
{LossiProfit for the year attnbutable to equity holders of the parent {2,014,522) 62,264
Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares in the year - basic EPS 55,594,289 55,555,365
Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares in the year — diluted EPS 55,594,289 55,555,365

There are 525,280 potentially diutive warrants and optrons over the Ordinary Shares at 31 December 2007 (2006 nil), which are not induded in
the cakaulation of diluted earnings per share because they were anti-chiutive for the year as therr conversion to Ordmary Shares would dearease
the loss per share

There have been no other tramsactions mvolving Ordmary Shares or poteral Ordinary Shares between the reporting date and the date of
completion of these financial statements
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11 Intangible exploration and evaluation assets

£
Cost
At 1 January 2007 14,032
Addrtions 94,885
Disposal -
At 31 December 2007 108,917
Amortisation
At 1 January 2007 -
Charge for the year, induding impawment -
Disposals _
At 31 December 2007 -
Net book amount
At 31 December 2007 108,917
At 1 January 2007 14,032

Under certain agreements which the Group has m place with Nexen {the “Nexen Carry Agreements™), Nexen will prowide 100% of the funding
required for work programmes up to a gross spend of £26 5 million The repayment to Nexen of any amounts carned under these
arrangements is dependent, on a licence by licence basss, on successful operations yielding suffiaent production to support repayment in
accordance with terms of the Nexen Carry Agreements

At 31 December 2007 £2,663,795 had been camed (2006 £1,267,477), which has not been recorded as erther non-current assets or habilmes,
since repayment 15 currently sufficiently uncertain

12 Trade and other receivables

2007 2006

£ £

VAT recoverable 78,321 5.005
Trade debtors 172,777 26,396
Prepayments 31,673 1,761

282,771 33,162

The carrying value of each of the Group's finangal assets as stated above 1s considered to be a reasonable approximation of its farr value

All of the Group's financial assets as stated above are from debtors of good credrt standing and have been reviewed for indicators of
impairment and no impaimment provision was found to be required (2006 £}

Of the Group's financial assets as stated above £207,263 (2006 £4,250) were past due at the reporting date, of which the ageing was

2007 2006
£ £
Not more than three months 43,528 1,892
More than three months but not more than s months 160.600 2,358
More than six months but not more than one year 3135 -
207,263 4,250

13 Cash and cash equivalents
2007 2006
£ £
Cash at bank and in hand 1,414,043 226,813
Short-term deposits - -
Total 1,414,043 226,813

The carrying value of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents as stated above s considered to be a reasonable appraximation of their far value

The Group onty deposits cash surpluses with major banks that have acceptable published credrt ratings




3 4 Istand Gas Resources plc Consohdated finanaal statements
Annual report and accounts 2007 Consolidated financal statements — notes

Consolidated financial statements — notes continued
As at 31 December 2007

14 Current fiabilities

2007 2006
£ £

Trade and gther payables
Trade gedritors 400,965 2,526
Taxation and soqal sequnty 39,453 11,950
Accruals and other creditors 310,476 36,047
750,894 50,523
Corporation tax 993 19,145

The carrying value of each of the Group's financial liabilities as stated abave is considered to be a reasonable approximation of its far value and
all creditors are payable on demand

Information regarding the Group's tax losses s presented in Note 15

15 Non-current liabilites
2007 2006
£

£
Trade and other payables, due 31 March 2009 77,725 -
Deferred tax -
71,725 -
Tax losses, none of which 1s considered sufficiently certain of utilisation to set up deferred tax assets, amount to
2007 2006
£ £
Company:
Trading loss - -
Excess management expenses 2618446 3,232,625
IGL:
Petroliferous - Trading loss 17478 15,180
Petrolferous — Minerals extraction allowances 160,632 65,747
KP Renewables (Operations) Lmrted ("KPRO™):
Trading loss 1193,689 1,193,689

The Company’s excess management expenses may only be offset against future profits, if any, of the Company generated in its capacty as a
Group holding company

The availability of Petroliferous amourtts to offset future profits, s dependent on IGL commencaing a Petroliferous Trade (as defined for tax
purposes), which riself 1s dependent on the commencement of CBM production

KPRO's losses may only be offset against future profits of KPRO, if any

16 Commutments
The Group had no lease or caprtal commutments at 31 December 2007 (2006 £nt)

As at 31 December 2007, no amounts have been mduded for exploration and apprasal as these are expected to be covered by the Nexen Carry
Agreements as referred to in Note 11 above (2006 £nil)

17 Finanaal iInstruments
The Group’s financal mstruments pnincipally comprise cash at bartk, and various items such as trade debtors and credriors that anse directly
from operations The main purpose of these financal instruments & to provide finance for the Group's operations

Financial assets and habilrties
The Group's pelicy s to ensure that adequate cash s available and the Group does not trade in financia! nstruments and has not entered into
any denvative transactions

Interest rate nsk profile of financial assets
Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates related to the published rate of the bank

As the Group currently has no borrowings, there s no related interest rate risk

Crednt risk
Cash and treasury aredit nsks are miigated through the exdusive use of nstitutions that carry acceptable publshed aedrt ratings so as to
minifrise countesparty rsk
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17 Finandal instruments contmued
Caprtal management
Information regarding the Group's management of caprtal s prowded in the Business Review on page 10

18 Share capital
f
£
No Nominal value* No Nomnal value*
Aurthonsed
1 January 2006 and 2007, Ordinary Shares of 1p each 100,000,000 1,000,000
10 April 2007 conversion of each ssued Ordinary Share of 1p each mto (46,589,662)  (465,897)
New Qrdinary Shares of 05p 46,589,662 23,295
New deferred shares of 95p each 46,589,662 442 602
10 Apnil 2007 consobdation of each new Qrdinary Share of 05p into (46,589,662)
Ordinary Shares of 1p each — 20 for 1 2,329,483
10 April 2007 addmional Ordinary Shares created 500,000,000 5,000,000
27 December 2007 consolidation of each 1p
Ordinary Share into {555,739,821)
New Ordinary Shares of 50p — 50 for 1 11,114,796
27 December 2007 new Ordinary Shares created 78,000,000 39,000,000
31 December 2007 89,114,796 44,557,398 46,589,662 442,602
Ordinary Shares Deferred shares
13 £
No  Nomma Value No Momnal Value
Issued and fully paid
1 Jarwsary 2006 and 2007, Ordinary Shares of 1p each 46,589,662 465,897
10 Apnl share conversion of each Ordinary Share of 1p each into (46,589,662)  (465,897)
New Ordinary Shares of 05p 46,589,662 23,295
New deferred shares of 95p 46,589,662 442,602
10 Apnl 2007 consobdanon of each new Ordinary Share of 05p mio (46,589,662)
Ordinary Shares of 1p each - 20or 1 2,329,483
10 Apnl shares issued for cash 75,000,000 750,000
10 April shares issued in hieu of fees 6,500,000 65,000
7 November shares allotted to former creditors 832,137 8,31
27 December consolidation of each 1p Ordinary Share into (84,661,610)
New Ordinary Shares of 50p — 50 for 1 1,693,232
27 December 2007 deferred shares repurchased (46,589,662) {442,602}
31 December shares issued 1o redeem loan notes 1,636,363 818,182
31 December shares ssued for acquisiton of IGL 55,555,365 27777683
31 December shares ssued m heu of fees 222,222 11,11
31 December 2007 Ordinary Shares of 50p each 59,107,182 29,553,592* - -
£
Share capital account*
At 1 January 2007 668
Market Caprtalisation of the Company on the last day of trading prior to announcement of the Reverse
Shares in ssue 1,354,586
Loan Notes converting mandatonly on Reverse 1,309,090
Adjusted value 2,663,676
At 31 December 2007 2,664,344

-mmmmmmammmwm1wmmmmmmmmwmnamﬂwmmmmdmm
mwmm“mnmmmmmmwmmdummmmmmofmecanpanyashstqzmd
immediately pnor to the announcernent of the Reverse phus the Equity of 161, the effective acquining company

The followmg share transacbons took place since 1 December 2006, pursuant to the CVA and related aangemnents made on 10 Aprid 2007

{all as explamed m more detad m the Company's 2006 Annual Report and Accourtts, m a araular to shareholders dated 16 March 2007 and m
an Admigsion Document ssued to shareholders on 27 November 2007) and the Reverse take-over and related arrangements as of 27 December
2007(allasexplamedmmomdetaﬂmanAdmssunDommeNsmedtosharethast?Nuva‘nberzoﬂn

s 10 Apni 2007 - Each ssued Ordinary 1p Share was subdivded mto one deferred 95p share and one new Ordinary 05p Share,
« 10 Apnl 2007 — Each new Ordinary 05p Share was consolidated on a one to twenty basis mto a new consolidated Ordinary 1p Share,
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18 Share caprtal continued

= 10 Apni 2007 — The authorsed share capital of the Company was increased by £5 miflion to £6 millon through the creation of 500 mihon
Ordinary 1p Shares,
10 Apnl 2007 — The Board allotted 75 million Ordinary 1p Shares pursuant to a fund rasing,
10 April 2007 — The Board allotted 6 5 midlion Ordinary 1p Shares as consideration for services prowded to the Company In the aggregate
total amount of £65,000, payable for fees,

= 10 Apnl 2007 — The Company granted warrants to acquire up to 4,191,474 Ordimary Shares at a pnce of 1p each Following the Reverse

these have been rebased as nghts to acquire 83,830 at a prce of 50p each,

2 November 2007 — The Company issued £900,000 of Loan Motes at par value,

7 November 2007 — The Company allotted 832,127 Ordinary 1p Shares to former creditors pursuant to the CVA,

27 December 2007 - Each existing Orciinary 1p Share was consolidated on a one for fifty basis into one share of 50p,

27 December 2007 — The authonsed share capttal of the Company was iIncreased by £39 milhon to £45 rmilkon through the creation of

78 million new Ordinary 50p Shares,

27 December 2007 — The Company repurchased all the issued deferred shares for an aggregate amount of 1p,

27 December 2007 — The Company ssued 440,000 warrants to three directors and one former director of the Company;

31 December 2007 — The Company issued 1,636,364 Ordinary 50p Shares at a price of 55p each to redeem the Loan Notes,

31 December 2007 — The Company wsued 55,555,365 Ordinary 50p Shares at a pnce of 90p each to the shareholders of IGL n

consideration for the acquesiton of ther shares, and

* 31 December 2007 - The Company issued 222,222 Ordmary 50p Shares as consideration for services provided to the Company in the
aggregate total amount of £200,000, payable for fees

19 Share wamrant reserve
The Company has made share based payments, all valued using Black-Scholes, as follows

2007 2006
£ f

Durectors
Serving at year end, as per Note § 109,758 -
Resigned durng the year 21,450 -
131,208 -
Professtonal advisers 35,418 -
166,626 -

All warrarts vested on grant and accordmgly the key assumptions made in arnving at the Black-Scholes valuations were share pnce on date
of grant, adjusted for subsequent consofidations where appropnate and the length of tme for which the warrants will remain exerasable

A long-term nisk free interest rate of 5% and an implied volatilty of 20% was used in valuing the warrants at the e of granting it was also
assurmed that no dividends would be paid dunng the ife of the wamants

20 Related party tansactions

2006

Dunng the year the Company was charged £132,500 by Kwikpowser Intemnational ple, a company of which Dr ) Watkins was a director as well
& bemg a former director of the Compary, prior to his death Also prior to his death the Company had advanced funds of £35,000 to
Kwikpower International pic and incurred expenses on behalf of the Company of £34,131 These sums were never repaid and so have been fully
provided for in the financial statements During the year the Company was also charged £21,276 by Wellman Engineening imited, which s a
subsidiary of Kwikpower Intemnational plc, which has also not been repard and so fully prowded for

2007
P Redmend, as well as being a drector of the Campany s also a director of Merchant Caprtal Limited (“MCL”), 2 wholly-owned subsidiary of
Merchant House Group plc, with winch group the Comparny had the following transactions during the year

* The Company entered ito any engagement letter with Merchant Caprtal ple (*MCP") on 1 February 2007, whesebyy MCP receved
£127,500 for corporate finance services In relation to the reconstruction and refinancing of the Company on 10 April 2007, of which a total
of £50,000 was taken in Ordinary Shares at the then refinanaing price and there was a grant of warrants, being o acquire up to 83,830
Ordinary Shares at an exerase prce of 50p per share exerasable up to 10 Apnl 2009

+ This agreement was amended on 30 Aprd 2007 pursuant to which MCP was engaged to prowde addrhional services for a monthly retainer
of £2,000 for one full day per week This retainer was terminated on 13 September 2007

« The Company entered Into an engagement letter with MCP on 3 November 2007 under which MCP agreed to act as adveser to the
Company in respect of the Reverse mn consideration for the ssue of £100,000 in vatue of Ordmary Shares at 90p per share

As a result of the above arrangements at 31 December 2007, MCL held 211,111 Ordiary Shares and the warrants to acquire 83,830 Ordmary
Shares as described above

Key management personnel
Thete are no key managernent personnel other than directors of the Company; details of whose remuneration s set out m Note 6

21 Subsequent events

On 13 February 2008 the Group's PEDLs 115 and 116, were extended for a further 10 months to 30 Novernber 2008 to give sufficent time for
completion of certan dnling operations that will then resutt n the hcences being extended for a minimum of a further four years and two
moriths fallowed by another 20 or more years thereafter if the Group deades to pursue production from within the acreage
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Parent company financial statements —
directors’ statement of responsibilities in respect thereof

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and parent company financial staternents in accardance with applicable United
Kingdom law and those International Finanaal Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Umon

The directors are required to prepare the parent company financial statements for each finanaial year which present fairly the financial position
of the parent company and its financial performance and cash flows for that period In prepanng the parent company financial staternents the
directors are required to

¢ select surtable accounting polices in accordance with 1AS 8 Accounting polaes, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors and then
apply them consistently,

s present information, induding accounting polices, in a manner that provides relevant, rehable, comparable and understandable information,

« provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in fFR5s 15 insufficent to enable users to understand the
impact of particular transactions, other events and condrtions on the parent company’s financial position and financial performance,

«  state that the parent company has complied with IFRSs, subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explained in the financal
statements, and

»  prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 1s Inappropnate to presume: that the parent company will continue In
business

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any tme the financial position of
the parent company and to enable them to ensure that the financal statements comply with the Companies Act 1985 They are also responsible
for safequarding the assets of the parent company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
mregulartres
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Island Gas Resources plc

We have audited the parent company financial statements (the parent company financial statements) of kland Gas Resources Pl¢ {the parent
company) for the year ended 31 December 2007 which comprise the parent company Balance Sheet, the parent company Statement of
Changes in Equsty, the parent company Cash Flow Statement and Notes 1 to 11 These parent company financial statements have been
prepared under the accounting policies set aut therein

We have reparted separately on the consolidated financial statements of Island Gas Resources Plc for the year ended 31 December 2007

This report is made solely to the parent company's members, as a body, 1n accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 Our audst
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the parent company’s members those matters we are required to state to them inan
auditor's report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other
than the parent company and the parent company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The direciors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report and the parent company financial statements i accordance with UK law and for
prepanng the parent company financal statements in accordance with applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards are set out in the
Statement of Directors’ Responsibiities

Our responsibility 15 to audit the parent company financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)

We report to you our opinion as to whether the parent company financial statements give 2 true and far view and whether the parent company
financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 We also report to you whether in cur opinion
the nformation given 1n the Directors’ Repart 1s consistent with the parent company financal statements The information given in the
Direciors’ Report includes that specific information presented in the Chairman’s Statement and the Business Review that is cross referred from
the Business Review and Future Developments section of the Directors’ Report

In addition we report ta you if, In our opinion, the parent company has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not receved al! the
information and explanations we require for our audt, or If Information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and other
transactions 15 not disclosed

We read other information contained in the Annual Report and consider whether 1t 1s consistent with the audited parent company financial
statenents The other information comprises only the Chairman's Statement, the Business Review, the Corporate Governance Report, the
Directors’ Remuneration Report and the Directors’ Report We consider the implications for cur report If we become aware of any apparent
misstatemnents or matenal iInconsistencies with the parent company financial statements Qur responsibilities do not extend to any other
information

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit In accardance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board An
audit includes exarination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the company financial statemenis Italso
includes an assessment of the significant estmates and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the Company financial
staternents, and of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the parent company’s circurnstances, consistently applied and adequately
disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtan all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us
with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the parent company financial statements are free from matenal misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of
information in the parent company finanoal statements

Opinion
In our opinion

+  the parent company financial staternents give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the Eurgpean Union, of the state
of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 December 2007,

» the parent company financia! staterments have been properly prepared in accordance wath the Companies Act 1985, and

+ theinformation given in the Directors' Report 1s consistent with the parent company financial statements

Ernst & Young LLP E M LL/P
Registered Auditors “’Vél?

London
19 May 2008
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Parent company balance sheet
As at 31 December 2007

2007 2006
Notes £ £
Non-current assets
Irvestments in subsidianes 2 50,512,282 -
Property plant and equipment — -
50,512,282 -
Current assets
Trade and other recevables 3 79,603 38,380
Project development costs - 13,505
Cash and cash equivalents 4 1,305,199 12,436
1,384,802 64,321
Current liabilhies
Trade and other payables 5 {516,541} (641,528)
Current taxation liabilrhes 5 - -
(516,541) (641,528)
Net current assets/(Liabilihes) 868,261 {577.207)
Total assets less current liabilities 51,380,543 (577,207}
Non-current hiabilries
Trade and other payables 6 {72,725) -
Net assets/(liabilities) 51,302,818 (577,207)
Capstal and reserves
Called up share capttal 9 29,553,592 465,897
Merger reserve 22,222 146 -
Share prermium account 3,935,632 3734348
Share capital redemption reserve - -
Share wamant/option reserve 10 166,626 244,000
{Accumulated defiait) {4,575,178) (5,021,452)
Shareholders’ funds 51,302,818 (577,207)

These financial statementts were approved and authonsed for issue by the Board on 19 May 2008 and are signed on 1ts behalf by

Franas Gugen Andrew Austin
Chairman Chief Executive Officer
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Parent company statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2007

Share Share
Share capital warant/
Called up Merger premium redemption optien  (Accumulated
share capital reserve account reserve reserve deficit} Jotal
£ £ £ £ £ £
Balance at 1 January 2006 465,897 - 3,734,348 - 244,000 (1.711,850) 2,732,355
Changes in equsty for 2006
Loss for the year (3.309,602) (3,309,602)
Balance at 31 December 2006 465,897 - 3,734,348 - 244,000 (5.021,452) (577.207)
Changes in equrty for 2007
Profit for the year 446,274 446,274
Issue and conversion of shares
At time of CvA 815,000 815,000
Pre Reverse 937614 170,707 1,108,321
At Reverse 27777683 22,222,146 49,999,829
Repurchase of deferred shares (442,602 442,602 -
Cost of issue of shares
At time of CvA {192,422) (192,422)
Pre Reverse (89,700) (89,700}
At Reverse (21,001) {352,902) (373,903)
Issue of warrants
At time of CVA 35,418 35418
To Drectors 131,208 131,208
Transfer from share option/warrant
reserve 244,000 (244,000) -
Balance at 31 December 2007 29,553,592 22,222,346 3,935,632 = 166,626 {4.575,178) 51,302,818
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Parent company cash flow statement
For the year ended 31 December 2007

2007 2006
Notes £ £

Operating activities
Retained profitAloss) for the year 446,274 (3,309,602)
Impairment of investments 1n subsichanes - 345,000
Loss on disposal of subsidiary 40,742 -
Finance ncome {26,440) {10,023)
(increase)dearease in trade and other recevables {41,223) 1,311,593
(increase)decrease in project development costs 13,505 {13,505}
IncreaseAdecrease) in trade and other payables (124987} 58349
Increase In credrtors due after one year 77,725 -
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from operating activities 385,596 (1,093,046)
Investing activities
Loss on disposal of subsidiary (40,742) -
Interest receved 26,440 10,023
Net cash (used in}/from investing activities {14,302) 10,023
Finanang activrties
Value of equrties issued, net 51,433,751 -
Less subsidiary acquired for equrties 2 (50,512,282) -
Net cash proceeds from the issue of equrties 921,469 -
Net cash from finanang actvities 921,469 -
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents in the year 1,292,763 (1,083,023)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 12,436 1,095,459
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,305,199 12,436




42 Island Gas Resources pic Parent financal statements
Annual report and accounts 2007 Parent compary finanaiat statements — notes

Parent company financial statements — notes
As at 31 December 2007

1 Accounting polides

{a) Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements have been prepared under the histoncat cost convention in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards, adopted for use by the Eurapean Union ("IFRS™), and with those parts of the Compantes Act 1985 apphcable to companies
prepanng ther accounts under IFRS

The Company’'s financial statements are presented in sterling and all vatues are rounded to the nearest pound except when otherwise indicated
As a Consolidated Income Statement 1s published in this Annual Report, a separate Income Statement for the Company s not presented within
these financial statements as permitted by Section 230(4) of the Companies Act 1985,

Certain new standards, interpretations and amendments to exsting standards have been publshed and are mandatory for the Company’'s
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008 o later penods but which the Company has not adopted early Those that may be
applicable to the Company are as follows

Effective date
International Accounting Standards (IAS/IFRSs)
IFRS 2 Amendment to iFRS 2 - Vesting Condmons and Cancellations 1 January 2009
RS 3 Busmess Combinatons (revised January 2008) 1 Jjuly 2009
IFRS 8 Operatng Segments 1 January 2009
1AS 1 Presentation of Fmanaal Statements {revised Septernber 2007) 1 January 2009
1AS 23 Borrowng Costs {revised March 2007) 1 January 2009
1AS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (revised January 2008) 1 July 2009
International Finanaal Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC)
IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements 1 January 2008

The Directors do not antiapate that the adoption of these standards and interpretations will have a material impact on the Company's financial
statements in the penod of nrtial application

(b) Going concern
After making enquines, the Directors are satisfied that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future For this reasan, the Directors continue to adapt the going concern basis in prepanng the financiat staternents

{0 Acquisition dunng the year of the Company’s principal subsiciary

On 31 December 2007 the Company was the subject of a reverse takeover whereby a prvate company, tsland Gas Limited (“IGL7), became a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Comparty but wath LGL's shareholders acquinng 94% of the Ordmary Share capital of the combmed ety (the
Reverse”), these arrangements being more fully descnbed in an adrmussion document dated 27 November 2007 {the "Admssion Document™)
In agcordance with IFRS the Company has accounted for the acquission at cost, bemng the far value of the shares ssued, with the difference
between thesr nommal value and farr value being accounted for as a Merger Reserve, as permitted under the Companies Act 1985

{d) Significant accounting judgements and estmates

Critical judgements in applying the Company’s accounting poliaes

The prinapat actvity of the Company’s major subsidiary, IGL, which has been accounted for at far value, 1s Coal Bed Methane ("CBM™) The
testing of the Company’s investment in subsidiary for impairment involves the assessment of IGL's CBM business, nduding IGL's production
rates which are a matter of judgement, as i the forecasting of the future economic benefit that may be derved from such producuon Finally,
the peniod of time over which the econormic benefit associated with the nvestment in subsidiary might anse 15 also a matter of judgement
These judgements affect the camyng value of nan-curment assets and imparment calculations related to such assets

Estimates and assumpbons
The key assumptions concerming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a sigrficant risk
of causing a matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the riext financal year are discussed below

* Current taxes
The Company makes provssion for habilties to income taxes Sigruficant judgement can be required 1n determiming these habilttes There are
many transactions and calculations for which the uttimate tax deterrmunation i, 1 the ordinary course of business, uncertain The Company
recogrises kabiries for taxaton ssues winich are open at the year end on the bass of whether it s more likely than not that a hability wall
uttimately crystallise Where the final tax outcomie of such matters is different from the amounts that were intially recorded, such
diffarences will mpact the mcome tax and deferred tax prowisions in the penod in which such determination s made A number of the
Company’s tax computations have yet to be formally signed off by the UK tax authorties

*  Camying value of investment in subsidianes
The Company has accounted for subsidianes that have been acquired at fair value, which investments are evaluated for mparment as
described at (&) below Any mpairment reviews, where required, nvolve significant jJudgement related to matters such as recoverable
reserves, production profiles, gas and electricity prices, development, operating and offtake costs, nature of land access agreements and
planning permissions, application of kocal and central taxes, and other matters Where the final outcome or revised estimates related to such
matters differ from the estimates used in any earlier impaiment reviews, the results of such differences, to the extent that they actually
affect any mpairment provisions, are accourited for when such revisions are made
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1 Accounting polices contmued

(e} Non-current assets (investments in subsidianes)

trvestments in subsidianes

trvestments held as non-current assets are held at cost less provesion for imparment unless the mvestments were acqurred in exchange for the
ssue or part ssue of shares in the Company, when they are intially recorded in the Company’s balance sheet at the farr value of the shares
tssuied together with the far value of any consideration paid, mcluding costs of acquisitzon less any provesion for impairment which may
subsequently be required

The Company’s nvestments held as non-current assets are assessed for ndications of impament whenever everits or changes n arcumstances
indicate that the carmyng value of an asset may not be recoverable, when impaimment s caloulated on the basts as set out below Any
mpaimment in value 1s charged to the Income Staternent as addibonal deprecation Where any impairment relates to assets held at farr value, an
equivalent amount of the merger reserve, to the extent avadable, will be crystalbsed resulting n a transfer from merger reserve to accumulated
defict through the statement of changes in equity, thereby mantaining distnbutable reserves,

impairment
impairment reviews, when required as descnbed above, are camed out on the following basis

By companng any amourts camed as mvestments held as non-current assets with the recoverable amount

The recoverable amaunt is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use The Company generally relies on far value
less cost to selt assessed erther by reference to comparable market transactions between a willing buyer and a willing seller or on the same
basss as used by willing buyers and sellers m the oil Industry When assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
therr present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the nsks speafic to
the asset or cash-generating unit

Where there has been a charge for impaimment in an earher penod, that charge will be reversed in a later penod where there has been a change
In arcurnstances to the extent that the recoverable amount ts higher than the net book value at the time In reversing mparment losses, the
carmying amount of the asset will be mcreased to the lower of its onginal carrying value or the carrying value that would have been determmned
{net of depletion) had no iImparment loss been recognised in pnior penods

Non ail and gas related property plant and equipment

Other property plant and equipment s stated at net book value, 1 e cost less depreaation Deprecation s provided at rates calculated to wite
off the cost of fixed assets, less ther estmated residua! values, over their estmated useful Iives at the following rates, wath any impairment being
accounted for as addional deprecation

Computer equipmernt - over three years on a straight line basis
Furntture and fixtures - over five years on a straight hne basis
Leasehold property improvements - over the penod of the lease

{f) Finanaal instruments

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash on hand and cash held on curent account or on short-term deposits at vanable mnterest rates wath
maturity penods of up to three months Any interest earned is accrued monthly and dassified as interest income within finance income

Trade and cther recevables
Trade receavables are recognsed when invoiced and are carned at the onginal nvoiced amount tess any allowances for doubtful debts Other
recevables are recognsed and measured at nomunal value

Trade and other payables and current taxation habilities
These habilites are all non interest beanng and so are measured at cost

Non-current kabilties — Trade payables
These liabilhies are all non nterest beanng and so are measured at cost

(g) Operating leases
Rentals under operating leases are charged to the Income Statement in the year n which they become due

(h) Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax.

The current tax 15 based on taxable {lossWprofit for the year Taxable (lossprofit differs from the {lossy/profit before taxation as reported in the
income Statement because tt exdudes rtems of incame or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further extludes tems that
are never taxable ar deductiole The Company’s bability for current tax s calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantrvely
enacted by the balance sheet date
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Parent company finandial statements — notes continued
As at 31 December 2007

1 Accounting poliaes continued

{h) Taxatron continued

Deferred tax s recognmsed in respect of all timing ditferences that have onginated but not reversed at the balance sheet date Timing differences

anse from the mclusion of tems of income and expenditure in taxation computations in penods different from those in which they are included

in the financial statements Deferred tax labiiies are not discounted Deferred tax assets are recogrised to the extent that it 1s regarded as more
likely than not that they wall be recovered

() Share based payments

Where share options or warrants are awardad to employees (induding directors), the fair value of the options or warrants at the date of the
grant s recorded n equity over the vesting penod Non-market vesting condrtions are taken into account by adjusting the number of equity
mstruments expected to vest at each balance sheet date so that, ultimately, the cumulative amount recognised over the vesting penod s based
on the number of options that eventually vest Market vesting conditions are factored in to the fair value of the options or warrants granted As
long as all other vesting condrtions are satisfied, the amount recorded 15 computed Irrespective of whether the market vestng condstions are
satsfied The cumulative amount recognised 1s not adjusted for the failure to actieve a market vesting condition, aithough equity no longer
required for options or warrants may be transterred to another equity reserve

Where the terms and conditions of options or warrants are modified before they vest, the increase In the fair value of the options, measured
immediately before and after the medification, 1s also recorded in equity over the remaining vesting penod

Where equity Instruments are granted to persons ather than employees, the amount recognsed in equrty s the fair value of goods and services
receved

Charges comesponding to the amounts recognised i equity are accounted for m the same manner as related costs met in cash, which wall
usually be to the parent company Income Statement unless the services rendered {and discharged by share based payments) relate to an
wsuance of equity or qualify for caprtalisation as a non-current asset In the case of an ssuance of equity, the charge 15 10 same equity reserve as
cash costs related to an ssuarke would be charged Costs may be capitalised withn non-current assets in the event of services being rendered
In connection with an acqusition or Intangible exploration and evaluation assets or property plant and equipment

() Equrty
Equity instruments sssured by the Company are usually recorded at the proceeds receved, net of direct issue costs, and allocated between called
up share capital, share premium acoounts of merger reserve as appropnate

2 Non-current assets ~ nvestments in subsidianes

Investments i subsidianes comprses
£

At 1January 2007 -
Acquistiion in the year, at farr vatue 50,512,282
Disposaks i the year -
At 31 December 2007 50,512,282

The subsidiary undertakings of the Company at 31 December 2007, which are all 100% owned directly by the Company and are al)
incorporated m England, were

Narme Pnnapal actvity
lsland Gas Limirted Coal Bed Methane
KP Renewables {Operations) Lmited Electnaty Generation

The subsidiary undertakmgs of the Comparty that were drsolved before 31 December 2007, which had all been ncorporated in England and
had all been dormant throughout the year, were

KP Bioenergy Holding Limited
KP Wind Holdings Limited

KP Snodiand Pawer Limited
KP Crayford Power Limited
North Otter Windfarm Limnted
Lephinmare Widfarm Limited

On 28 December 2007, the Compary disposed of KP Wind and Biomass Limited {*KPW&B™), a company that had been formed spearfically to
receve all of the Company’s project actviies and all of the related assets and habilives, induding all amounts connected with the Creditors
Volurtary Agreement that the Company had entered mto on 10 Aprl 2007 ("CVA"), which had the effect of extinguishng the CVA from the
Company’s perspective This company, which had been owned 100% by the Comparty, was incorporated in England

KPWE&E was sold for £1, which, after taking account of drsposal costs, led to a loss on disposal of £40,742 (2006 £ni) bewng recorded in the
Parent Company income Statemert
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3 Trade and other recervables

2007 2006

£ £

VAT recoverable 55,761 30,100
Trade debtars - -
Prepayments 23,842 8,280

79,603 38,380

The carrying value of each of the Company's financial assets as stated above 15 considered to be a reasonable approximation of its fair value

All of the Company's financial assets as stated above are from debtors of good credrt standing and have been reviewed for indicators of
impairment and no impairment provision was found to be required (2006 £nil}

Of the Company’s financial assets as stated above £27,457 (2006 £30,100) were past due at the reporting date, the ageing of which was

2007 2006

3 f

Not more than three months - 30,100
More thar three months but not more than six months 27,457 -

27,457 30,100

4 Cash and cash equivalents

2007 2006
£ £
Cash at bank and in hand 1,305,199 12,436

Short-term deposits - -

1,305,199 12,436

The carrying vatue of the Company’s cash and cash equivalents as stated above 5 onsdered to be a reasonable approximation of their farr value
The Company only deposits cash surphises with major banks that have acceptable publshed credit ratings

5 Current liabilities

2007 2006
£ £

Trade and other payables
Trade credrtors 384,188 -
Taxation and socal secunty - -
Acqruak and other aeditors 132,353 641,528
516,541 641,528
Corporation tax - -

The carrying value of each of the Company’s financial llabilities as stated above 1s considered to be a reasonable approximation of 1ts fair value
and all credrtors are payable on demand

Information regarding the Compary’s tax losses ts presented in Note 6

6 Non-current abilrbes

2007 2006
£ £
Trade credrtors, due 31 March 2009 77725 -

Deferred tax -
77,725 -

Tax losses, none of which s considered sufficiertly certain of utilisation to set up deferred tax assets, amount to

2007 2006
£ £
Trading loss - -
Excess managernent expenses 2,618,446 3,232,625

Excess management expenses may only be offset against future profits, if any, of the Company generated in its capacty as a Group holding company
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Parent company financial statements — notes continued
As at 31 December 2007

7 Commitments
The Comparty had no lease or caprtal commitments at 31 December 2007 (2006 £ril)

8 Finanoa! instruments
The Company’s financial instruments principally comprise cash at bark, and various rtems such as trade debtors and creditors that anse directly
from operations The main purpose of these financial mstruments s to prowide finance for the Company's operations

Finanaial assets and habilries
The Company's policy Is to ensure that adequate cash s avadable and the Company does not trade in financial nstruments and has not entered
Into any denvative transactions

Interest rate risk profile of financial assets
Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates related to the published rate of the bank

As the Company currently has no borrowings, there s no related interest rate sk
Credit nsk
Cash and treasury credrt nisks are mitigated through the exdusive use of mstrtutions that carry acceptable publshed credit ratings 50 as to

minimise counterparty nsk

Capital management
Information regarding the Company’s management of capital s provided in the Business review on page 10

9 Share caprtal

Ordinary Shares Deferred shares ¢
£
No  Nommal Value Na  Nomnal Value
Authonised
1 January 2006 and 2007 Ordinary Shares of 1p each 100,000,000 1,000,000
10 Apnl 2007 conversian of each ssued Ordinary Share of 1p each mto (46,589,662)  (465,897)
New Ordinary Shares of 05p 46,589,662 23,295
New deferred shares of 95p each 46,589,662 442,602
10 Apnl 2007 consohidation of each new Ordmary Share of 05p mto {46,589,662)
Ordnary Shares of 1p each - 20 for 1 2,329,483
10 Apnl 2007 addrional Ordinary Shares created 500,000,000 5,000,000
27 December 2007 consolidation of each 1p
Ordmary Share into (555,739,821
Newv Ordinary Shares of 50p — 50 for 1 11,114,796
27 December 2007 new Ordinary Shares created 78,000,000 39,000,000
31 December 2007 89,114,796 44,557,398 46,589,662 442,602
Ordinary Shares Deferred shares .
£
No  Nomna Vatue No Nominal Value
Issued and fully paid
1 January 2006 and 2007 Ordinary Shares of 1p each 46,589,662 465,897
10 Apnl share converston of each Ordmary Share of 1p each mto (46,589,662)  (465,897)
New Ordmnary Shares of 05p 46,589,662 23,295
New deferred shares of 95p 46,589,662 442,602
10 April 2007 consolidation of each new Ordmary Share of 05p Into (46,589,662)
Ordinary Shares of 1p each - 20 for 1 2,329,483
10 Apnl shares ssued for cash 75,000,000 750,000
10 Apni shares issued m hieu of fees 6,500,000 65,000
7 November shares allotted to former creditors 832,127 8.3N1
27 December consohdation of each 1p Ordinary Share into {84,661,610)
New Ordmary Shares of 50p — 50 for 1 1,693,232
27 December deferred shares repurchased (46,589,662)  (442,602)
31 December shares issued to redeem lcan notes 1,636,363 818,182
31 December shares ssued for acquisiion of IGL 55,555,365 27,777,683
31 Decemnber shares ssued m lieu of fees 222,222 mm
31 December 2007 Ordinary Shares of 50p each 59,107,182 29,553,592 - -

The following share transactions took place since 1 December 2006, pursuant to the CVA and related amrangements made on 10 Apnl 2007
(all as explained m more detall in the Company’s 2006 Annual Report and Accounts, In a Crrcular to shareholders dated 16 March 2007
and m an Admission Docurnent sssued to shareholders on 27 Novemnber 2007) and the Reverse take-over and related amangernents as of
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9 Share capital continued
27 December 2007 (all as explamed m more detail in an Admission Document issued to shareholders on 27 November 2007}

« 10 Apnl 2007 — Each ssued Ordinary 1p Share was subdmded into one deferred 95p share and one new Ordinary 05p Share,

e 10 Apnl 2007 — Each new Ordinary 05p Share was consolidated on a one to twenty basis nto a new consolidated Ordinary 1p Share,

» 10 Apnl 2007 — The authorised share caprtal of the Company was increased by £5 mifion to £6 million through the creation of 500 mifton
Ordinary 1p Shares,

e 10 Apn! 2007 — The Board allotted 75 millon Ordinary 1p Shares pursuant to a fund raising,

« 10 Apnl 2007 — The Board allotted 6 5 million Crdinary 1p Shares as consideration for senaces provided 10 the Company in the aggregate
total amount of £65,000, payable for fees,

+ 10 Apnl 2007 - The Company granted warrants to acque up to 4,191,474 Ordinary Shares at a price of 1p each Followang the Reverse

these have been rebased as nghts to acguire 83,830 at a prce of 50p each,

2 Novemnber 2007 — The Company ssued £900,000 of Loan Notes at par value,

7 November 2007 - The Company allotted 832,127 Qrdinary ip Shares to former creditors pursuant to the CVA,

77 December 2007 — Each existing Ordinary 1p Share was consclidated on a one for fifty basts snto one share of 50p,

27 December 2007 — The authonsed share caprtal of the Company was increased by £39 million to £45 million through the creation of

78 million new Ordinary 50p Shares,

27 December 2007 - The Company repurchased all the issued deferred shares for an aggregate amount of 1p,

27 December 2007 — The Company ssued 440,000 warrants to three directors and one former director of the Company,

31 December 2007 — The Company ssued 1,636,364 Ordinary 50p Shares at a price of 55p each to redeem the Loan Nates,

31 December 2007 - The Company ssued 55,555,365 Ordinary 50p Shares at a pnce of 90p each to the shareholders of IGLn

consideration for the acquishion of ther shares, and

« 31 December 2007 — The Company sssued 222,222 Qrdinary 50p Shares as consideration for services provided to the Company for the
aggregate total amount of £200,000 payable for {ees

. &+ 09

The costs of all share ssues have all been charged to erther share premum account of share caprtal redemnption reserve and are as disdosed m
the parent company statement of changes in equrty

10 Share warrant reserve
The Company has made share based payments, all valued using Black-Scholes, as follows

2007 2006
£ £

Directors
Serving at year end 109,758 -
Resigned dunng the year 21,450 -
131,208 -
Professional advisers 35418 -
166,626 -

[
|
All warrants vested on grant and accordingly the key assumptions made m armang at the Black-Schales valuations were share price on date i
of grant, adjusted for subsequent consolidations where appropnate and the length of tme for wiich the wamrants will remamn exerasable i
A long-term nsk free rate of 5% and an imphed volatlity of 20% was used in valuing the wamant at time of granting It was also assumed that '
no dividends would be paid durmg the iife of the warrants

11 Related party transactions

2006

Dunng the year, the Compary was charged £132,500 by Kwikpower Intemational plc, a company of which Dr ) Watkins was a director as well
as being a former director of the Company, pnor to his death Abo pnor to hrs death, the Company had advanced funds of £35,000 10
Kwakpower International plc and incurred expenses on behalf of the Company of £34,131 These sums were never repaid and so have been fully
provided for In the financial statements Duning the year, the Company was alse charged £21,276 by Wellman Engineenng Lmited, which s a
subsichiary of Kwikpower International plc, which has alsa not been repaid and hence was fully provided for

2007
P Redrnond, as well as bemg a director of the Compary, s akso a director af Merchant Caprtal Limited (*MCL"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Merchant House Group pic, with which group the Company had the foliowing transactons dunng the year:

s The Company entered mto an engagemenit letter with Merchart Caprtal ple (“MCP”) on 1 February 2007, whereby MCP received £127,500
for corporate finance services In relation to the reconstruction and refinancing of the Company on 10 Apnl 2007, of which a total of
£50,000 was taken in Qrdinary Shares at the then refinancing price and there was a grant of warrants over 83,830 Ordinary Shares at an
exerase pnce of 50p per share exercisable up to 10 Apnl 2009

« This agreement was amended on 30 Apnl 2007 pursuant to which MCP was engaged to prande addronal services for a monthly retamner
of £2,000 for one full day per week This retaner was terminated on 13 September 2007

«  The Company entered mto an engagement letter with MCP on 3 November 2007 under which MCP agreed to act as adviser to the
Company n respect of the Reverse in consderation for the issue of £100,000 i value of Ordinary Shares at 90p per share

As a resuit of the above arrangements at 31 December 2007, MCL held 211,111 Ordinary Shares and the warrants to acquire 83,830 Ordinary |
Shares as descnbed above
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice &5 hereby given that the 2008 Annual General Meeting of Island Gas Resources plc {"the Compary™) will be held on 7 July 2008 at
10am at the offices of Gavin Anderson, 85 Strand, London WC2R 0BW to consider the following business

Ordmary business
To consider and if thought fit, to pass the followng resolutions which will be proposed as ordmary resolutions

1 To receve the Company's annual report and accounts for the year ended 31 December 2007 together wath the reports of the directors and
the audntors thereon

2 That Emst & Young be re-appointed as auditors, to hold office until the condlusion of the next General Meeting at which accounts are laid
before the Company, and that the Directors be authonsed to determine the Auditors’ remuneration

3 That) Bryant be re-elected as a director of the Company

4 ThatR } Armstrong be re-elected as a director of the Company

Dated 19 May 2008

By Order of the Board
Mofo Secretanes Limrted
Company Secretary

Registered Office
1-6 Yarmouth Place
London

W11 78U
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B Cheshire  — Executive Technical Director (appointed 27 December 2007)
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1 Bryant ~ Non-Executwe (Chairman to 27 December 2007)
pPRedmond - Non-Executive (appomnted 10 Apnl 2007)

D Undley OBE - Director (resigned 27 December 2007)

Company Secretary
Mofo Secretanes Limited
Crtypoint

One Ropemaker Street
London EC2Y SAW

Nomunated Adwiser and Broker

Libertas Caprtal Corporate Finance Limited/Ubertas Capital Securities Limned
16 Berkley Street

London W1) 8DZ

Registrars

Computershare Investor Services plc
The Pavihons

Bridgwater Road

Brstol 8513 BAE
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Bankers
HSBC
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Further copies of this Annual Report and Accounts can be obtained from the Registered Office of island Gas Resources plc (IGas)
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